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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021

The Trustees present thelr annual report together with the inancial stetements and audios’ report of the charitalble
company for the year onded 31 August 031 The annual report senwas the purpose of both a Trustees’ report. and a
Directors report wnder company law, The White Horse Federation [TWHF) was incorporabed an 18th May 2012

hs gt the date of these Accounts TWHF operated 24 Primary, 5 Secondary, 3 Special schools in Swindan, Wiltshine
Gloucestershine. Oxfordshire and Berkshire. TWHF has a focused passion for working cellaboratively to provide first-class
learming experiences to a wide range of children in order far them to strive for excellence as they enter the next phase of
thelr education and, ultimately. the world of work. TWHF have a comblned paupil capacity excluding Nursery of 13501 and
a rall of 12228 at end of September 2021, In addition, there was 385 Mursery places reconded.

TWHF is committed to values-based education whene besching uses values o create a sbrong learning ermaranment that
enhances academic attainmant and helps students develop social and relationship skills that last throwghout their lves
Values ane principles that drve behmsour, they influence our actions and attitudes, and becorme our frarmewark for living
The wide range of posithve hibman values encouraged In TWHF schools include patience. respect. fairmess. tolerance.
compassion, and collaboration A positive leaming emvreamaent s achieved through the values modelled by staff
throughout each schood.

Az with the pricr year this year saw significant disruption agairst the continued backdrop to the pandemic but egually a
rumber of positives resulted including increased resilience and determination of all staff to the delivery of educational
provision incleding enharced development of virtual | remote leaming platforms. TWHF. despite this difficult period of
uneertainty. has continued 1o execule on it strategy to improve educational outcames, iImprove its inancial position and
continued to support pupits and families,

DBJIECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and &lims

The principal object and sctivity of TWHF = to operate as a Multl Academy Trust for the benelit of young people and o
advance the pefarmance development. delivery and maximise progress and attalnment in all schools oparating within
TWHE. TWHF is recognised as one of the largest natiomeide and forms a key member of the Queen's Street Group

Thee mission of TWHF is to broaden the horzons of young peaple through world class education and to ensune the offer
to disadvantaged students a large cohort across the schools Incations sorsed by TWHF. i5 tho bast in class

TWHF aimas to defiver the above aims through the following key pillars of activity:
« Continue ta raise the standacd of educational attalinment and achiovwement of all pupils

+ Provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including axtracurricular activitios, supparted by central Trust expertise of
School Improserment resources allowing the MAT to pool rescurces effectively

« Ensure that every chikd enjoys the same high gieality education In terms of resourcing, ultlon and cane.

«  Ensure Princlpals of schools are Tocused on Teaching and Learning cutcomes and noat administration

+ Brovide value for money for the funds experded

«  Fulfil thie rales of Teaching Schocls so it can drive improvernents theough TWHF schools and the broader community
« Conduct TWHF business In accordance with the highest standards of integrty. prabity and openness

TWHF aima to enable each child to realise his o her full academic. creative and physical potential and to develop poditive
social and moral valuies

Ariraesl Boport srd Flrancksl Stetorments - &




Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Public Benelit

The Trustees confirrm that they have complied with the duty in Section 175} of the Charities Act 2001 to have due regard
to the Charity Commission’s general gukdance on public berefit in exercising thelr powers or duties. Thay have refered
o this guidance when reviewing TWHF aims and cbjectives and In planning its future activities. Many of the Academies
serve financially deprived areas and TWHF airms to provide and advance a comprehensive education offering to all pupils
1A IS cans

STRATEGCIC REPORT

Key Performance Indicators B Metrles Summarny

TWHF uses & number of key benchmarks to svaluate perforrmance and drive budgetary contrel These Include Pupil
Teacher Hatio. Teacher to Support Stalf Ratios. Averasge Salaries arl Naon-Salary Spend ratios Budget setting and
mchitoring have a clear focus on Integrated Currlculum Financial Planring (KKFP) and TWHF use the data to drive Year
on Year porformance and identify those schools in need of additional focus in order 1o ensure kiy Benchmarks ang
targeted

a5 furding s based on pupll numbers this is also & key perdormance indicator. Pupll nambers for 2020421 were 12228 an
incraase of 216 ovar 201930

frnnual Income Annual Operating Expense

w Est ———
B Fund Oype
w Ol " | 1 Fer HEalt i Agerey Staf
L [ ] i i . m g

i R
Reserves Covid
Im 20021 as part of cur recovery program, we added During the year we invested over E250k in devices o
£+0.6m bo ol feserves with (urther Increase planned for suppart the on-line earning capabdities of TWHF pupils
20022

People
Capital Investment

BOO- FTE Teaching Staff
Crar £2m spent on Infrastructure

600+ FTE Suppart Staff.
Dewelopmaent of on-ling learming platform For TWHF
Schsals

Thee White FHorse Federation - 5k s
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Key Pupll KPls
251 Primary Pupll Teacher Ratlo, 16.0 Secondary Teacher Pupll Ratio
fuchiovements and Performance

TWHF has a clear visien and growth strategy to develop matuse hubs in the South West each including a mix of
Secondary. Primary and Special schoals. The strategy has supported the growth of TWHF to 32 schools albeit in the past
pavo yoars the focus has been one of contalidation af schools on-boarded in terms of educational perfarmance and
financial wiability

TWHF has bean impacted by the global pandemic as every educational establishment has bean, 'We have been able to
uiilize the strengths of our centralised struciures to develop plans across the arganisation which have delivered a solid
base for our pupils which has enabled them to continue their edwcation, albeit in different settings. This has included the
sef up of VLE (Vintual Learring Erviransment ) for our schoals

Froem an operational perspective, this has allewed us to maxdmise opportunites with regards to device deployment,
minimize financial exposures and ensure ouwr facilities were as covid secure as possible Obvicusly, the pandemic has
impacted some of the plans and pace of delivery but that said 8 number of key achisverments in 20202021 were
accomplished and are detalled below

Frimary Level

Due to the second closure of Brimary schools as a result of Covid 19, from 4th Januany 2021 childron at ey testing paints
wiene not assessed and compaative data with similar schools and natlonal morms is ot pessible, Prios o Covid the results
for combined AWM showed progress and the fogus during lockdown was (o ensure the YLE malntained the fogus and
learning that supported such Improvemant

All primnary schools provided dally ‘live learnbng” during the lockdown As a result. 95%« of pupils engaged with on-line
Irarning

Primary schools successfully modified and adapted their curriculum post lockdown, As a result, trangition into the
rext academnic year cleary Mentified gaps in pupdls’ learning and allowed fod teachers to plan well-sequenced lessons.

+ Leadership devetopment and succession plannlng continues o offer significant caseer advancerment cpportunities
with theisd forrmer Assistant Principals securing intemnal Headships with TWHF,

» Bl schools have & clear intent for their curriculum. providing coherent and well-sequenced approach ta cone and
foundation subjects.

Secondary level

In Jamuary 2021, the Secretary of Stabte announoed that there would be no surmmen examination serles for students taking
GCSEs, AS lewels or A levels in 2021, and it was confirmed that these gqualifications would be awarded using Centre
Determnined Grades. This meant that individual examination centres. such as schools and colleges. deterrmined the actuwal
grades awarded for each gualification. By sharing its approach. TWHF secondary schools affered clarity and confidence
to students. staff and families. Furthermore. it provided an overvigsw on the decisions teachers made; and how teachers
msde these decislons; and identified the evddence teachers utilised 1o suppont the decision-making process

The examination regulator made clear that it "should mot be any easier cr rmore difficult for students to attain their grades
in 2021, than In previous years”. The use of Centre Determined Crades acknowledged that the volume of work completed
by a student was less than kn previous years, cwing to the ongoing impact of the global health crisie Therefore. the use of
Centre Determined Crades prdured students weee not unfairly disadvantaged by the procesd At the same time, thioy
wiere designed to enable all students to progress to thedr next stage of leaming and/or employment.

Tha Wihdtw Horee Fedaerrson
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

By further wsing this data and combining it with Comparative Outcomes Methodobogy through comparing baseline on
entry at Year 7 over time with the two data collection paints preceding "lockdown®™ we can extrapalate the following key
FroESsages:

« Disadvantaged outcomes across all scheols in respect of 5 « English and Maths resulis have continued to rise since

2020
= Combimned outcormes for 8ll schools continue to be strong with MAT averages showing significant improvernent

BCTOSE Many areas
= HS5 WA academic and vocational results are predominantly abowe the 20019 national averagse

The KS& ard K55 data for our Secondany schoals (s detailed below using CAC repaorting as a basis:

Motional a8 Hotlonal PE 5+ EngHah | K55 Notional K55 Hotional
| Blased o C0EG 2027 [Blisd om CIHS 202 & Math LE VA Academic | LT VA Vocational
Devizes &T4T 055 4H iR 059
| JrAA L 0oz 347 1 o2
i Melksharm Oak Gibutl =2 370 051 ]
: The Ridgeway 5548 a5 G213 D24 065 '
| Mational Cata :
2019 LES -0.03 L35 0.0% 0.6

PEIOLF Pl availa b

Dwring the year 1M received a positive Ofsted visit embedding progreds recently made This {s encourangling as the
school repositions itself for a growth In pupl] numbers and becoming a school of choice. By contrast. Peak Academiy had
& regative Ofited visit in June 2030, and TWHF i now in active discustont with the RSC on improvement actkons for the
wohool.

Capital Programmes
During the year. TWHF completed work ana number of projects secured via SCA capital grants and LA funding including
= Dewizes roof replacemant Phase 11 in certaln areas and Firg Alarm replacemant

Boller replacermenis across a8 number ol schools

« Dovelopment of enhanced facilities at 5t Luke's.

TWHF is also actively engaging in a number of green initiative investments including LED light replacemeants, Solar panels
and heat pumps. These will be progressed from 2022 omvards.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AMND MAMNAGEMEMNT

Constitution

TWHF = 8 company limited by guaranbee and an exemnpt charity. The current Asticles of Assoclation were adophed
Auiggust 191 2018 and reflect the miksd patune of TWHF fallowing the on bearding of new schosts which included & Church
af England [CofE] primary schools The Articles of Association reflect this struchure of schools and to ensune goverfiance
overalght of CoE schools by the Salisbuny Diocesan Board of Education.

Details of the Trustees who served theoughout the year and to the date of accounts approval. except as noted. are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on pages | to 2 N Capstick (Chief Executive Officer) 15 a Trustee.

T Whitw Horse Fecleration
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Mombors liability

Each Member of TWHF undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it Being wound up while
they are a member, orwithin one year if they cease to be a member, such amount as may be reguired. net exceading £10,
for the delbts and liabilities contracted before they Coase to be a mamibaer

Trustees” Indamnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice TWHF has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and officers frarm
claims arsing from regligent acts emors oF armissions cocurring whilst on Acadermy business. Such Iinsurance shall not
exterd to amy clalm arlsing from any ack or omission which the Trastees knew to be a breach of trust or duty or reckless
actions.

TRUSTEES
Appointment of Trustees

The Aricles gowvern the appointment and role of Trustees and allow for the appalntment of up to 12 Trusteesfor a
foursear pericd, except that this time limit does not apply to the Chief Executive Officar [CEQ) Subject to remaining
cligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed of re-elecied.

When appointing rew Trustees, the Boaard will give corgideration ta the skills and experlence ol existing Trustees in order
to ensure that the Board has the necessary skifls to contribute fully to TWHPs developmant.

induction and Training of Trustees

The training and Induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experence Trushees one
encouraged to visit schools and meet the Senior Leadership, althowgh this has been physically limited by Cowid
restrictions im place at our schools In the past wear. Al Trustees are provided with copies of palicies, protedunss. minutos,
sccounts, budgets, plars and ather necessary docurnents that they will need to undertake thelr role as Tnastees.

The Trustees ardd LGE's are also supported by an independent governance expert. who provides ongolng advice, braining
and development on governance matters for these bodies

TWHF's Articles of Association have resulted in the designation of a number of Trustees as Foundation Trustees and a
Corporate Mermber, Dan Roberts, who represents the interests of the Sallsbury Diccesan Board of Education

ORCGAMISATION STRUCTURE
Covernance

Covernance of TWHF continued to evohe during the year with clear focus on long term planning. risk management ard
challenge as well as training of Local Boards of Covernars, An audit af Trustees' skitls and experioncs was caffied out

TWHF pperates a number of sub-Cammittees that report into the Baard - namely Risk & Audit Teaching Learning and
Standards, Pay & Remuneration Finance and a People committes. The role of each sub-committes in maonitaring risk
managermant has been clarified with each sub-committes respansible for eversight of rsks within its scope of activities
Reports and updates are provided to Risk & Audit committes from other sub committess as needed to enable it to
manitor risk management across TWHF and report to TWHF Board. During the year significant work was undertaken in
the area of developing the risk register and deploy it through the gowemnance structure, Al Trustees (with the exception
af the Chair of Chairs Trustee) have been appeinted to senve on at beast one sub-committee.

The Wihite Horss Federation
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

The Board of Trustees meets a rinirmum of four times 8 vear and normally includes a strategy away day althowgh Covid
has obviously meant a number of these meatings hove been virtual There have been a number of other focused
meetings during the year centerng on financial planning, growth and capacity and succession planning and these will
continue into the comirg year. The Board establishes an overall framework for the gowernance of TWHF and datermines
membearship. terms of reference and procedures of s sub-commitiess and working groups.

it may recelve written and verbal reports including policies fram sub-cormmittees for ratification It monitors the activities
of sub-committees through the minutes of their meetings. Waorking groups are established to perform specific tasks over
a limited tmescale, The Trustess consider that the combination of Board meetings and Committes meetings with the
additional ad hoc meetings focused on key issues ansure that the Board are fully informed of key issues and challenges,

The following decisions are resenved to the Board of Trusbees: to consider any proposals for changes to the status of
constitution af TWHF and (s corrmittes structure, o appoint of removse the Chair andfor Vice Chair, to appaint the CEQ

and Cherk, to approve the Annual plan and budgat The Trustees are also responsible for setting general policy. adopting
am annual plan and budget, approving the statutary socaunts, monitaring performance and making major decicions

about the direction of TWHF and staff appointments

The Board of Trustees has devohwed responsibility for day-torday management to the CEOQ. The CED implements the
poficies lald dewn by the Trustees and repors back to them on perfoarmance |m lime with the formal scheme of

delegation
DORCANISATION STRUCTURE - Operational

TWHF is the parent company for all the Academies as listed below. In addition, there are 2 subsidiary trading companies.
e The White Homse Educational Services Company and The White Homse Consultancy Services Company which have
been recently incorporated and dormant for 2000/21. The expectation will be for income to be genaerated in these during
2021122 with all surpluses covenanted back to the parent TWHF,

The 32 schools within TWHF are managed across three maln reglons of Swindon, Wiltshire and Ouxford/Berkshire and
grawth iz shown in the table below:

Annual Regort and Financial Ttaterments - For L year @nded 31 aogust 203




Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Primary Secondary

Drove Primary 15t Jul 12 .
Rodbourne Chaney Primary 15t Jul 12 201 /12
Tregores Prmary 15t Jusl 12
Hyland Schoal st Jul 12
Mountford Manor 181 Juil 12
The Croft 15t Sop 12 2012 /13
Moredon Primary Ird Oct 13 2013 /14
Zouch Academy 15t Apr 14 i {1
The Ridgeway & Sixth Form 158 MNow 1s
Haydon Wick Primany lst Sep 14 The Peak Academy 15t Apr 15
Southwaold Primary st Apr 16 2015 /16
Gorse Hill Primary 15t Apr 16 ) e
broam Infants 151 Mar 17 !
ﬁﬁ“”ﬂmﬂ:ﬂ |:: M:;‘ v 2016 /17 Devizes School st Feb 17
Larkhiil 15t Miar 18 IMA Academy 152 Feb 18
2017 /18 ATOM Trust: 15t Aug 18
BATOM Trust: st Ausg 18 Melkzham Oak
Bowchill
Seend Col E
Forest & Sandridge C of E
Shaw CaolE
5t George's C ol E
5t Mary's Broughton Gifford Col E
The Manor C of E
Caglebrook st Sep 1B
StMary & All Salnts Cof E  1st Nov 18 2018 /19 St Lukes Academy Ist Sept 18
Crange Infants 1st Mar 19
Grange Junbor 151 Mar 19

2020/ 21 Whitelands Academy I5t Sep 20

Senior Directors for the ey areas of Primany, Secondary provide the necessary oversight and direction bo the sectors. A
mratrix management structure exists allowing functicnal direction in key areas of Central Serndices, ie Estates T Finance,
HR and Business services, and a key operational delivery to the schools as needed

Annual Report and Financial Staterments - For bhe peir ended 31 Sagust 10
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

The CEQ works with the Sanior Leadership Team {SLT] The 5LT hes evabved through the year and as at year end consisted
af the CED, Sector Ddrectors for Prirnary and Secondany, CO0 [/ CRD and Director for People,

The SLT manages TWHF at an operational level, implementing the policies lakd down by the Trustees. A Scheme of
Delegation has been agreed with the Trustess

The CEC. CO0 [ CFO and Chalr of Finance Committes are responaible for the authorsation of spending within agreed
budgets. Defined spending authorities are devolved to budget holders. The CEQ and Sector Directors are respansible for
the appointment of teaching and teaching support staff, The COO [ CFOD & responsible for appointing non-teaching
support stalf warking closely with functlonal leads. Senlor role appointments ahsays include a Trustee on the inberdaw

panel

The CED. Dr Nicholas Capstick OBE is the Accounting Dfficer

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management persennel

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustess and the senior leadership team comprize the key managerment personnel of
TWHE in charge of directing and controdling. running and operating TWHF on a day to day basis. Al Trustess give thair

time freely and no Trustee received remunaration in the yoear

Dwtails of Trustees” experses and related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts. The pay of key
managernent personnel s reviewed annually and mormally increased In accordance with average eamings

The Pay and Remuneration of the Executive management team and Directors i set by the Pay and Remuneration
Committes under thelr Terms of Reference. Schoal Principals and Teachers pay is set in accordance with teachers pay
and conditions, and support staff by National Joint Councll [NICHand Hay scales as appropiate,

The Pay and femuneration committes utilise external reports and benchmarking when setting pay awards. Setting of
the CEQ remuneration, and associated porformance targets amd resdew., |s carried ouwt by the Chalr of Trust Board.

Trade Union facility time

Relevant Unwon officials

Number of employees who were rélevant unicn officials during year 2

Full Tifme eguivalent ermplogee nummbes 06

Percentage of time spent an faciliyy tme Mumber of Employees
ﬁ -

1-50% i

BS99 o

100

The arrsownt of facility time spant as a percentage of the total pay bill Is immaterial
Connecbed Drganisations, including Related Party Relationships

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of TWHF

Tha Wihkio Horse Fedarabion a = 1 g
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

TWHF o the share capital of The White Horse Educational Serdces Ltd and The White Horse Consultancy Ltd. These
wiere dormant in the year.

There are no sponsoers of formal Parent Teacher Assoclations [PTA] assoclated with TWHF although PTAs exist In some of
tha schools within TWHF,

Engagoement with Employees £ Employment of the disabled
TWHF ensure angagerment with emplovess through the Tollowing

Bositive engagemant with Unions at focal and national level
«  Prncipal regular briefings from Trust and Sector leads
= Mewsleiters at school sites and media campaligns
« Crensdcasts on a varlety of [ssues as needed, eg Covid updates
« Lse of sector leads netwaork
= Flexibie warking
« Wall Being First Alders and assoclated wellbeing training

TWHF is an Equal Opportunities Employer, and works in conjunction with the Equality Act 2010 and supports disabled
pecple including these with long term health conditions, learning disabilities and so called “hidden® disabilities swch as
dyslexia If an applicant confirms that they have a disability we can make reasconable adjustrments to ensure that any
selection processes including the interview  ane fair and equitable

TWHF also supports disabled employees by lollowing the Managing Employes Health, ‘Wellbeing and Attendance
Precedurs in SchoolsfAcademies. This palicy ensures that TWHF works with Qecupational Health in order bo support all
disabllities with internal traintng programmes and career development.

Engagerment with suppliers. custemers and others ln a business relationship with TWHF

Delivering the TWHF strategy requires strong relationships with suppliers. customer, [pupils and parents / carers) as well
as the wider community where the schools are located, In addition there i a need to ensune Strong integration with the
wiider stakebolder groups of various regulatory organisations and Local Authaorities.

The SLT ase responsible for maintaiming collaborative and transparent refationships with appropriate memibers of tha DFE
ard ESFA. The year has soon positive reviews with ESFA a8 well as a SREMA vigit. The CED and Chair also have negular
contact with the R5C as TWHF positions for future growth.

#s TWHF malntaln a functional matrix this allows Function Leads to manage cngalng relationships with key suppiiers as
appropriate depending an the nature of the service. The COO0 § CFO, aleng with the Strategic Procurement Manager,
ensures contracts are selected through a falr process.

Princlpals are responsible for engaging with thelr pupll, parent and community populations and supported by Sector
Directors where nédded and appropriate

Engagement across all the above areas is focused around ensuring the fellowing communication outleis are utitised as
part of TWHF communication strategy:

«  Mewesbetters for school
¢ Crosvdcasts fod var ods stakeholders
« Acadermy wobsites as a communication kool
+ WLE
Staff survenys and actions
Media campasgns and links to local press

Thee White Horse Fesioration
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Going Concern

After making appropriate anquiries. the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that TWHF has adeguate
resolnces bo continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future The results for 2020070 resulted in & strong
surplus being recorded and a number of posithe steps were completed over the perieds including varkous restructures,
Thiz lang range fonecast is positive and will increase the resene position with clear actions plans built into 202122 For this
reasan it continues to adopt the going concern basls in preparing the financlal statements

Operational Finance Review

Most of TWHF income is obtained from the DIE via the ESFA In the form of recurrent grants. the use of which is restricted
1o particular purposes The grants received from the DFE during the year ended 31 Auvgust 202] and the associated
expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Staterment of Financial Activities

TWHF also receives grants for fixed assets from the BfE which are shown in the Staterment of Financial Activities as
restricted income in the Fikxed Asset Fund, The Restricted Floed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation
charges over the useful life of the assets concerned. During the year TWHF recorded a surplus of £E08&m as a result of
improvernent actions taken and a focus on cost and supply base, The ongeing pandemic and assecisted lockdowns
experienced in the year had an overall neutral impact with lower income, eg. through lettings and after school provisions.
being offset by lower codt n operations

The table below identifles a summary ol the underlying operational performance for TWHF ignoring the impact of
pension adjustments and transfers in during the pariod.

Oporational View

£000s 2o 2020
I
Income in Pericd 71550 71,598
Expanditure Staff Costs 57156 Laaza
Crther 15782 TS50
Total 70,938 T, Fra
Operational management Profit / (loss) in period 612 feo)
Capital funds moverment from current and prior year incorme streams n271 4B
Total Surplus including capital movemenkts 5B5 304

Af I August 2021 the net book value of fised assets was E1213m and moverments in tangible fixed assets ane shown in
note 17 to the fimancial staterments. The assets were used exclushely for providing education and the associated suppot
senices to the puplls

TWHF has taken on the deficit in the Lecal Covernment Pension Scheme in respect of its mon-teaching stalf transferred
on comversion and adoption of such asset liability from other schools joining TWHF. The presence of a pension deficit
does pob constitute an immediate llabHity &2 TWHEF = reguired to aceount for berelits and llabilities over many years into
the future and & effectively underaritten by the government The deficit is incorporated within the Staterment of
Financial Activities with details in Note 24 to the financial statements arsd the Board & confident that it can meet the
required contributions from projected futune opafations.
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Reseres Policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of TWHF with a detailed review at the Finance Committee. This review
encompaises the natune of neome and expenditure streams by reglonal locatlon. the need to match income with
commitmaents and the nature of reserves. The Trustees take inko consideration tha future plans of TWHF, the uncertalmnty
owef future income streams and other key risks identified during the risk revies

As previously communicated the reserves ab the end of 31 August 2020 was a concemn and steps ldentified wene
implemented ard TWHF have exited the year with a strong surplus of £612k or 0.8% of Income. The long range plan is for
the reserves to retum to a position of 2% of Income. over the coming three years, with clear action plans to deliver this
Cash balances rermain stromg. IE miust be relterated that the lower resenes have been driven by the growth in number a
mumber of schoals joining TWHF in recent years with negative finance pesitions.

Investment Policy

Diuring the coming year the Trustees will continue 1o review the investment of free reserves and cash flow ona month to
manth basis.

PRINCIPAL RISHS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Members and Trustees have implemented a system to monitor risks that TWHF faces. especially in the operational
areas and in refation to the contral of finance. They have introduced systemns, including cperational procedures and
interral financial controls, In order to minkmizse risk Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they
have adeguate nsurance cover,

The principal risks and uncertainties facing TWHF ane as lollows which are monitored regularly at Executive and Trustes
leal

Educational - The risk centres on TWHF's ability to ensure that teaching and learning across all Key Stages and Early Years
are i lime with, or above, national standands This has been & challenge in the secend year of the pandemic but significant
progress was seen in the implementation of virtual leaming platforms. A detailed risk assessment is maintained for each
schoal allowing for focused action and sharing of best practice. The Teaching and Learning commities reviews detailed
progress and reports key risks to the Bisk & Asdit committes

Financial - TWHF has considerable reliance on continued Gowernment funding through the ESFA In the last year over
95% of incorming resources wene ultimately Government funded and whilst this bevel |s expected to continue, there B no
assurance that public funding will continue at the same lovels or on the same terrra. Significant pressure is also expected
i thie ares of pension payments (contributionst

TWHF prepane detalled monthly fimancial presentatbons for review at by the Finance Committes and Chair and also
engage positively with ESFA. TWHF Board moniter performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of
compatison of KPs and ICFP benchmarks The posithon for 20031 is far stropger and will continue o build showing the
impact of measures taken in these and other schools in terms of struectures and school improverment
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Begulation and Legislation risk arses from fallure to elfecthvely manage TWHFs finances and internal contrals in
campliance wath regulations and legiskation, The Trustees continue to eedeey and ensure that appropriate measures ane
In place to mitigate these risks including retlance on Internal Audit

Ciperational Functions - Trusbees monitcr key risks |n areas of Estates, IT and HR on & regular basis Signifcant focus has
Beer seen in the year, on developing IT controls with particular emphasis in the area of Cyber and infrastructure. While
such risk will abways exist. the aim s to mitigate and ensure compensating contrals afe in place whenesver passible

Svrateqy & Growth - the Trustees review TWHFs strategy on a regular basis and moniter s implementation. Due
diligence assessment and on boarding implications of new schools are also regulary reviewed and assassed,

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

TWiHF and its Truskees do not act a5 the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.

STREAMLINED ENERCY AND CARBOM REPORTING

Energy Background

& large multi-academy brust with 32 academy schools with buildings of varying ages and makerials. Heating across TWHF
sites ks predominantly fromn mains gas but sorme sites use othes fuels. TWHF ewrs minlbus transportation and has several

rrErmbers of stalf who claim business mileage. For both the ménibus and buesiness travel, TWHF has recorded the numiber
af miles travelled during the year

This maethadology Tollows the GHO Beporting Protocol and uses the 202 Government emilssion conversion factors foe
greenhouse Gas company reporting.

Energy SouTce | Consumption | Emissions calculation
iGas - total KWh (kilowati- 815,069 kWh (gross CV Scopel | BIHLOEE KWh* QIERE (202] fuels,
hours] used for the year {calarific value)) natural gas conversion factor gross
OV to kg CORa)
= 1.669.333 kglOie
=1,669.3 tCO%
Electricity - total kWh used  &390210 BWhH Scope 2 43890211 KWh * 0212353 (2021 UK
far the year electricity conversion factor to
kgCore) = 952173 kgClh'e
=932 tCOYe
Gas Oil - 6.251 litres usad 56 937 Kwhi Scopel 623 litres * 275857 (2021 Fusls ~ Gos
far the yoar il comversion to kgCote]
= 17180 kOO
I =171 tC0%
Orwineed Transport TOUONE miles * 155 [2021 SECE kwh Scopal  TOO8 mikes = 112685 km
Mini biss - TOMNE Anlles In pass & delvery vehs vans average] 112,683 krn " 024116 2021 mansged
Thei year = T0E 528 kW assots wehicles, vans average - used

im Bew of passenger vehickes
comersian) = FL17E kglo%e
= 2700w

Tha White Horss: Federation

i Company Limited By Cusranies
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Energy Source | consumption Scops Emistions calculation
Reimbursed Transport - 103.559 miles * 11607 (2071 SECR Scope3 103539 miles " 0.2B053 (707
total mileage reimbursed KwWh pass & delivery vehs, average Business travel ard average car
from stafl claims car conversion factor to kWh, petrod) comversion factor to kgCl¥e, patrol)
= 105539 mulas = 120170 kWh = 29048 kgCOie
= 29.0 tC0%

Tatal 15, 799.92% K\Wh | 26769 CD1E
Intensity ratio Emissions data (tC0He) compared 267452 t00% | 1,609 puplls

with an appropriate business activity

pupll numbers as per Autumn = 0,25 tE0% per pupll

CEnEUs]

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

UK Cresnhouse gae emimlons and anergy use data | Current reparting year Cormparisan reparting year

for the period 1 Septembaer 2020 to 31 Asgust 2020 OO 20820 (figures are for
iHustrathee purposes|

Energy consumption used te calculste emissions 13793923 12427800

{EAT

Scope 1 emiissions in metrnc [onnes CO%

Cas consumption 1665353 14723
Cas ¥ consurmptian 17182 Q.000
Cramed transport F A 4045

Tatal Scope 1TET0 151316

ilﬂﬂ £ BrnEskons i1 mEine tonnes COMe

Purchased alectricity 832173 E26 a5}
Scope & cmissions im metric tonnes C0%

Business travel in employes-owned vehicles 2o.05 6799
Tatad gross emissions in metric tonnes CO%e 2674592 2.508.00
Intensity ratic Tonnes CO% per pupil 0230 0.zl

Quantification and reporting methodology

W have followed the 20159 HM Government Ervdranmental Repoting Culdelines. We have also used the GHC Reporting
Protocol - Corporate Standand arnd have tted the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reparting

Intensity measurement

The chosen inbensity measurerment ratio Is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO% per pupll, the recommended ratio
fiar the sector

Thae V' PTE HorHS F BT a0 .
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

Bailer. water heater, fan heaters & BMS replacement at Devizes Schoal
Mew insulated pipework at Devizes Schood
Partial roof replacement including additional insulation at St Luke's Secondary Schogl
Small gas bodler removed and replaced with electric heaters at The Peak Acadermry
Partial DG window replacement at The Peak Acadermy
Bodlar, water heater, fan heaters & BMS replacement at Tregoze BPrimarny School
Partial LED light replacement at

Devizes School

Corse Hill Schoaol

Haydon Wick Prirmany School

Larkhill Prirmary School

Malksham Oak Secondary Scheal

Thie Peak Acadeny

The Ridgeway Secondary School

Tregoze Primary School

Disclosure infarmation to the Auditors
Ir s far as the Trustees are awars
« There s o relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditars ane unawane: and

= The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themsebees awane of any relevant sudit
Iifermation and to establish that the auditars ane awane of that information

The auwditard, Bishop Fleming Bath Limited, are willing to cantinue in office and a resclution to appeint them will be
proposed at the annual general meating

Trustess' report. Incorporating a strategic report. approved by order of the board of tustess, as campany directonm on
A DO Tidhnd sigred on the board's behalf by

L Cibsan E
Chair of Trustoes é__‘ﬁ-___._
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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

GCOVERMAKCE STATEMENT
SCOPE OF RESPOMNSIBILITY

The Trustees acknowledge they have overall responsibility for ensuring that TWHF has an effective and appropriate
system of contral, financial and athepvize Howevers such a system [s designed to manage ather than eliminate the risk
of faillure to achleve business objectrves. and can provide only reasonabls and not absalute adsurance agains! material
misstaterment ar lo4s,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day to day responsitility to the CEO, as Accounting Offlcer, for ensuring financial
controls conform with the requirerments of both propriety and gecd financial management and in sccardance with the
requirernents and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between TWHF and the Secretary of State for
Educaticn. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in
interrnal control

GOVERMAMCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Trustees'
responsibiiities statement. The Board of Trustees has formally met five tires during the year, Attendance during the year
at maatings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustoe bMeetings attended Cut of a possible
DO M Capstick 5 5
M Cllzan 5 5
B Laffey 5 5
C Hoptan 5 5
C Maclecd 5 5
J Marton 5 5
E Spurrier 5 5
S Haynes 2 5
g Lewas 5 5
L Med i 5
K Poulion & 5
M Backitt i &

In edchitian to the main scheduled Board and Committes meetings the Trusbees support the sentor leadership as needed
and during the year this was evident in support across a number of key areas inchuding strategic financial planning.
restructures, succassion planning and adhos meetings.

The Finamnce Committee s a sub-committes of the Board. The purpose of the Finance Committes is to ensure that the
standards of financial contred and administration are adhered to, make financial plans including agreeing the draft
budget and longer range plarning. and moniter the progress of income and expenditure. The Finance Commities has
formally met 5 times during the year, Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustes Meelings attended Out of b possible
Edward Spurrier - chalr of committee g g
MNinna Cibson 5 5
Kingsley Poultan 5 5
Simon Haynes 1 1
Mick Beckekt 1 1

The purpose of the Bisk & Audit Commities s to oversee the financial reposting process, Including awdit through the year
and at year end. In addition the Comrmittes oversees tha [nternal contrel and risk management frarmework for TWHF, The
Hisk & Audit Committes have formally met 4 times during the year,

Arrgal Begor and Financial SLlersiAlE  Fo




Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows

Trustee Mestings attended Ot of 8 possible
Christopher Hoplon - chalr of committes 4 4
Hick Beckett 1 £
Charlotte Macleod £ 3
Richard Lewis L 4

The purpase of the Teaching, Learning and Steandards Commities |5 to oversee and challenge the schoals with
assessmants and attainment at sach school and consider key risks and mitigation actions across the educational
framewwork of the schools in TWHF. The Teaching. Learming and Standands committes have formally met & times during
the year

Attendance at meatings in the year was a follows:

Trustes Mootings attended Out of 4 possible
Jilby Mertan - chair of commities 3 &
Ninna Gibson 4 4
Liza Mal L e
Nicholas Capstick - CEQ 4 4

The Pay and Remuneration committes oversees all aspects of mmuneration including Teacher and Support pay awarnds
and evaluations and works closely with HR Directod. In addition it also oversees all senior pay ewards and performance
evaluations. The commities has met formally throwgh the period and is chaired by Charotie Machead

Artendance at meetings in the voar was s follows:

Trustes Meatings attended Ouit of & possible
Charlotte Mackeod - chalr of committes & &
Jilly Mortan i ia
Hick Beckett & i
Kingsley Poultan A i

The purpose of the Peoples Committee is to focus on employes engagement, performance evaluations. benalits and
weirll: beirg of staff. The Peoples commitiee have formnally met 4 times during the year

Artendance at meetings In the year was as follows:

Trustos Meotings attended Gut of a possible
Charlotte Machead - chalr of committes
Jdilly Morton

Mick Beckett

Richard Lowis

Lisa MNel

Kingsley Paultan

B B Ba H P L
B B B B B

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERMNAL CONTROL

Thi systerm af internal control s designed to manage risk to a reasonabbe evel rather than bo eliminate all rsk of failune
to achigve policles aims and objectives: it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The systern of internal contoal is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and préoritise the risks
to the achievernent of TWHF policies. sims and objectives. to evaluate the likellhood of those risks being realised and tho
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently. effectively ard economically. The system of internal
cantred has been In plece In TWHF throughout the peried of the signing of these accounts and during lockdown a
number of acthdtles were conducted virtually,

Thee Wit Horss Fasieration

& Carmpary Limitod By Cusranion

Arrwial Fepor and Finencisl Siaterments - For the yode endiesd 11 A




Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISH

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks bo which TWHF is exposed together with the operating, inanclal and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. it is of the view that there is a formal angaing
process fof identifiing, evaluating and managing TWHFS significant risks that has been in place for the year to 31 August
2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements This process is regulary reviewed by
the Board of Trugbies

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

TWHF: setem of internal fnancial contral 5 based on a Famework of regular management infarmation and
admintstrathe procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

- Comprehenshve budgeting and manitorng sysbems with an annual budget and penodic financial reports swhich ane
reviewned and agreed by the board of trustees;

= Regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reparts which indicate financlal performance agalmst the forecasts ancd
aof major purchase plams, capital works and expenditure programmes:

« Regular and comprehensive committers meetings with clear focus on Risk Management
setting targets to rmeasure financial and other performance:

« Clearky defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) gu'n:l-uiim!':
Delegation of authority and segregation of dutles,
Identification and managerment of risks

REM act as Internal Auditers for TWHF and repart regulaly to the Risk & sudit Commiites. Thels role includes carmying owt
audits on selected TWHF risk management policies and processes. On an annual basls. the Intémnal auditor reports to the
Board of Trustees an the operation of the systerns of control and on the dscharge of the Trustees financial
responsibilities. During the year the following internal Audits were conducted:

« Special Educational Meeds and Disability [SEM| Arrangements
» Spoure remote Working Arrangements
« Farlough processes and arrangements
Financlal Contrals with focus on Assel management
+ Follos up mview

REVIEW DF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the CED has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of intemal contral, During
the yead i guestion the review has been Informied by

+ The work of the internal auditon

< The waork of the external auditors:

« The hinancial management and governance sell-sssessment process:

+ Thework of the execiutive managers within TWHF who have responsibility for the dewslopment and
maintenance of the internal control frarmework

The Accouwnting Officer has been advised of the implicatkons of the result of thew review of the system of internal control
by the Finance Commities and a plan to address weakneises and ondure continuows improwermeent of the syitem 5 in
place

&pproved by order of the members of the Board of Trustess on 1 Decernber 2021 and signed on ts behalf, by

M Capstick
Accounting Oftcer M

The White Hora Feddernibon :
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Staterment on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of The White Horse Federation | have considered my responsibility to notify TWHF boasd of Trustees
and the Education & SKills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irmegularity, impropriety and non-compliance with tefms
and condithons af all funding recelved by TWHE, unders the funding agreament in place between TWHF and the Secretary
of State for Education As part of my congideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2020

{ canfirm that | and TWHF board of Trustess are able to identify any matedal irregular or Improper use al all furds by
TWHF. or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of furnding under TWHFs funding agreement and the
Academiet Financial Handbook 2020

1 eonfirm that no indtances of material irmegulanty, iImproprety of lurding non-cormpliance have been discovered to date
if any instances are identified after the date of this statement. these will be notified to the board of Trustees and ESFA

— MUGpA TS

Accounting Officer

Date: | Dacamtr Tla2a

Tha White Horse Federation
B Coamgarry Lirmited By Cuanin e

Annual Report and Financial Statemssnts - For the year ended 31 Aogust 2031 i




Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities
For the year ended 31 August 2021

The Trustess {whao are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company lawh am responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academees Accounts Direction
pubdished by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United RKingdorn Accounting Standands {United Hingdom
GCenarally Accepbed Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financlal statements for each financial. Under company law, the Trustees
miust not approve the financial staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
af the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources. Incleding its Income and
expenditure. for that perod. In preparing these financip] statements, the Trustees are reguired To:

+ Belect sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

+ QDeEserve the methods and principles of the Charities SO8PF 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021
Make judgments and accounting adtirnates that ane reasonable and prudent;

+ State whethor applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed. subject to any material departures disclosed
and explaired in the financlal sStATEMBAE,

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unlass it & inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting recosds that are sufficient 1o show and explain the
chantable company's transactions and disclose wath reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to emure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They ate also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the chartable company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection ol fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitabde cormpany applies financial and
orher controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management They are also
responsible for ensuring grants receivwed fromn ESFASDIE have been applied for the purposes intended

The Trustees are responsiobe for the maintenance ard integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company’s website, Legislation in the United Hingdom governing the prepacation and dissemination of
financial staterments may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by

i ——
L Cibsan

Chair of Truslers

Date; | Necamtns ‘o

Tha Wihits Fioms Feclerstion
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation

OPINIOMN

W have audited the financial statements of The White Horse Federation (the ‘acadery’) for the year ended 3 August
202 which comprise the Stavement of financial activities, the balance sheet the statement of cash flows and the related
reates. including a summanny of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewerk that has been applied
im thelr preparation is applicable law, United Kingdorm Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Cenerally Accepboed
Acoounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Starsdand 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
arnd Republic of lreland’. the Charities S0O8P 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 1o 2021 Bsved by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency

In our opinion the inancial statements:

- Give a true and fair view of the state af TWsFs alfairs as at 51 August 2021 and of its Incoming resources and application
of resources. including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

»  Hawve beon prapery prepared in sceardance with United Kingdarm Cenerally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

«  Have been prepaned in accordance with the reguirerments of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academbes Accounts Direction 2020 1o 2021 issued By the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

Wt conductied cur audit in sccordance with international Standards an Auditireg (LR (1545 (LK) ard apolicable law, Char
responsibilites wnder those standards are further described in the Auditons' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
staterments section of our repart. We are independent of TWHF in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom. including the Financial Reporiing Councils
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements. 'We
beligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion

COMCLUSIONS RELATING TO GQING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
i the preparation of the financial staternents s appropriate

Based on the work we have peformned, we have not identified any matenial uncertainties relating to events of cordition
that indindually ar codlectneely, miay cast significant doubt on TWHFS ability to continue a2 a gaing cancern far a period
of at least twalve maonths from when the fimancial staternents are avthorised for issue

Our responsibilities and the responsibiities of the Trustees with respect to going corcern are described in the relevant
spctions af this report

OTHER INFORMATICON

Thee other nformation comprises the information incleded (n the anncel report other than the finsncial staterments and
oAl auditors’ report therean, The Trustees are respansible for the other information contained within the annwal report
Our opinien on the financial staterments does nol cover the other Information and, except 1o the extent otherise
axplicitly stated in our report. we do not gupness any form of assurance conclusion thengan, Sur respensibility s o read
the other information and. In doirg so. consider whether the other information (s materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears o be materally
mizstated. I we [dentify such material inconsistencles or apparent materlal misstatements, we are reguired to determing
whether this gives fise 1o a matenal misstaterment in the finandial staternents themseles I based on the work we have
performed. we conclude that there s a materal misstatemant of this other information. we are required to report that
fact

Wiz hawe mothing to repoet in this regarnd.

The Whits Horie Federation

A, Cormpaay Lismsied By Lusnsntess
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation (continued)

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPAMNIES ACT 2006
in owr apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« The information given in the Trustees' repart Inchuding the Strategic repart for the financial year for which the financial
staterments are prepared 4 consstent with the financial slatements
= The Trustess report and the Strategic report have been prepaned Iim accordamce with applicable legal reguirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPDRT BY EXCEPTIOM

I the light of cur knoededge and understanding of TWHF and its emironment obtalned in the course of the audit we
have not identified msterial misstatements in the Trustess’ report incleding the Strategic repart

We have nothing to report in respect of the following miatters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report bo you I I our opinicn;

= Adeguate accounting records have not been kept of returms adequate for our audit have not been recelved from
branches: nat visited by us o

= The financial statermenis are not in agreement with the accounting reconds and returms; of

- Certain disclosures of Trustees” remunaration specified by e are not made. or

= We have not received all the information and explanations we requlre for our audit,

RESPOMSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES'

#iz explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities staternent. the Trustees lwho are also the directers of TWHF for
the purposes of company law)] are respansible for the preparation of the financial staterments and for beling satisfied that
they give a true and falr view. and for such internal control as the Trustees determine Iz necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staterments that are free frorm matedial misscatement whether due to fraud of emor

In preparing the financial statements. the Trustesd are responsible for addedsing TWHFL ability to continue as & going
concemn. disclosing, as applicable. matters related to galng concern and using the golng concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustees either intend bo liguidate TWHF or 1o cease operations, or hive no realistic altermathe but te do 20

AUDITORS' RESPOMSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Char abjectves are to cbrakn reasonable assurance about whether the financisl staterments as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due 0o frawd or armor, and to Bsue an auditors report that Includes our opinion
Reasorabbe assurance is a8 high level of assusance, but is not a guarantees that an awdit conducted in accordance with
Ends (LK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists Misstaterments can arise from frawd or erroc and aro
considersd material if, individwally or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of thesa financial statements

rregularities. including fraud, am instances of non-compliance with les and regulations. We design procedures in ling
wilth our responsibilities. cutlined above, to detect materal misstatements in respect of imegularitles, including fraud. The
extont towhich cur procedures are capable of detecting irragularities. including fraud is detailed below

in identifying and assessing risks of matedal misstaterment in respect of iregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with leaws and regulations we considered the following:

« The nature of TWHF sectar, contral emaronment and TWHFs performance;

Basults of our enguiries of management and the Trustee board. including the committees charged with governance
over TWHES linance and control. about thelr own idenification and assessrment of the risks of rregularities.

The White Horse R Annual Resssrt and Financial Siatermsents - For
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation (continued)

« By matters we identified having obtained and reviewed TWHFs decumentation of thelr policies and procedures
relating to idontifing, evalueating and complying with laws and regulations and whother they were aware of any
instarnces aof pon-compliance; detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knewledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud: the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or noncompliancoe with
lanees and regulations:

« Moy TWHE epsured it met s obligations arlsing from it being linanced by the ESEA and ather furders, and as such
material compliance with these cbligations is required to ensurne TWHF will continee to recerse its public funding and
be authorised to operate, including around ensuring thene IS no matedal unsuthorised use of funds and expenditune:

= How TWHF ensuned it et its obiligations to its prirci pal regulator, the Secratary of State for Education; and

« The matters discussed ameong the sudilt engagement team and invelving relevant intemmal Acedermy speclakists
regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicatons of fraud

A5 a rewdlt of these proceduns, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the erganisation fos
frawd, which included imncorrect recognition af revenue, management averride of controls wing manual journal entries,
precuremant and payroll We identified the greatest potential for fraud as incorrect recognition of revenue and
mansgement averfide wsing manual journal entries.

1 carmmon with all sudie under 1548 (UK) we sre also reguired ta perlorm apecific procedures bo retpond to the el af
managemant owrride, We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that TWHF oparates
in foousing on provissons of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of matedial amownts
arsd disclosures in the fnancial staterments. The key laws and regulatiors we cansidered in this context included the
Academies Accounts Direction. Acadernies Financial Handbook UK Companies Act and tax legslation

In addition, we considered provisions of other Taws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
tatements but compliance with which may be fundamental to TWHFs abifity to oporate or to avold a material penalty
These included safeguarding regulations, data protection regulations occcupational health and safety regulations.
education and Nspections legislation. building legislation and employment legislation

O procedures o respond 1o rsks identibed included the falkowing

Reviewdng the financinl staterment disclosures and testing to supparting decumentation fo assess cormpliance with
provisions of relevant lnws and reguilations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements.

= Rewvigwing the financial statement disclosures and testing bo supporting documentation to assess the recognition of
PEE R,

= Enguirng of Trustees and management and those chamged with govermance concerming actual and potentisl
litigation and claims:

= Parforming procedures to confirm material compliance with the reguirerments of its regulators:

= Purforming analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unespected relationships that may indicate risks of
matetial misstaternent due te fraud,

= Reading minutes of meatings of those charged with governance and reviewing inbernal control reports; amd
= n addmessing the risk of fraud through management cverride of controls, testing the approprateness of journal entries

and other adjustments; and assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative
of a patential bias

Arsrmial Feport and Finencisl Staterments - For e year endsd 3 August 20T
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation (continued)

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud rsks to all engagement team
mermibess. and remalned alert to ary indications of fraud of ron-compliance with lews and regulations throwghowt the
auhit

Char audit procedures were designed to respond to rsks of materal misstatemant in the financial statements.
recognising that the risk of not detecting & material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
cne resulting from an error as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery. misrspresentations or
through collusion. These ane inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed
ron-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial staterments. the
besa, |ikely we weuld became sware af it

A further deseription of our responsibilities For the audit of the financial taterments & located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website ab wwow fre orgukfauditersresponsibilities. This description forms pan of our auditors” repart

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report = made solely to TWHFs Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter % of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our sudit work has been undertaken $o that we might state to TWHFS Members those matters we ane required to
state to them inan awditors report and for ne other purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility o anyone ather than TWHF and its Members, 84 a body. for owr awdit work, far this report, or fof the
opinkons we have formed,

S M

Simon Morrlson FCA (senior statutary auditar)
for and on behalf of

Bishop Fleming Bath Limited
Chartered fAccountants
Statutony Auditors

Minerva House

Loreser Bristol Boad

BHath

BAZ 9ER

Date: |1, Deesnber Tz
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity
to The White Horse Federation and The Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the berms of our engagement letter dated & October 2007 and further to the reguiremants of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) a5 included in the Academies Aceounts Direction 2020 ta 2020, we haw
carfied out an engagement to abtaln lmited assurance about whather the expenditune disbursed and income recelved
by Thie White Horse Federation during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 7071 have been applied to the purpoaes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactsons conform to the authorities which govern them

This report 5 made solely to The White Horse Federation and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The White Horse Federation and ESFA those matiers we
are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
aESUME responsibdlity to anyone ather than The White Horse Federation and ESFA, for our work, for this report. or for the
conclusion we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE WHITE HORSE FEDERATION S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE REPORTING
ACCOUNTANT

The sccounting officer & responsible. under the regquirements of The White Horse Federation's funding agreement with
the Secretany of State for Education dated 1 July 2012 and the Academiles Financial Handboolk, extant frem | September
020, far ensuring that eapenditure disbursed and incame received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern tham

Chwir responsibilities for this engagement ane establishead n the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guldance and
are 1o abtain limited assurance and report In aceardance with our engagement lettar and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 'We repart to you whaether anything has come to our attention in camying
out cur wark which suggests that m all materal respects, expenditure disbursed and incame receved during the year |
September 2020 to 31 August FOI have not been applied to purposes intended by Padiament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govemn them,

APPROACH

‘We conducted our engagement In acconrdance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditons and Reporting
Accountant of Acadery Trusts issued by ESFA We porformed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter

The objecthve of a limited assurance engagement & to perdforn such procedures as to obtaim Information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient approgriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity

A lrmited assurance angagement is mone limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagement and conseguantly
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might e dentified
In a reasonable assurancd engagerment Accardingly, vwe do not expreds & poditive opinion

Quer engagement incledes examination. on & test bagis, of evidence relevant to the rgularity and prapriety of TWHFs
income and expenditure

O weork on regularity included a review of the internal controls policies and procedures that have been implemanted
and an assescrment of thair desigrn and effectivensss o understand fow TWHE complied with the frarmaaark of
autharities. W also mviewed the reports commissioned by the trustees (o assess the Iintemal controls theoughout the

year

We performed detalled testing based on owr assessment of the risk of materal irregularity, Immpropelety and
non-cormpliance This work was integrated with our audit on the financial staterments whene approphate and included
analytical reviewe and detailed substantive testhng of transactions

Ay Fraspoery e Flaaeecol| SINTerrmmbs « Fod 1R wear emaded T8 Soess




Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity
to The White Horse Federation and The Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

CONCLUSION

In the course of our veark, nothing has come te our atteatban which seggest n all materdal respects the expenditung
desbBursad and incorme fecened dumng thie year | September 020 to 38 August 2021 hias ot boan apied to pUnposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do nat conform o the authanties which govern tham

[

Simon Morrson FCA (Reporting Accountant)
Bishop Fleming Bath Limited

Charterad Accountants

Statutory Auditors

Mirsared FOLSE

Lovwer Bristod Bosd

Bath

BaZ 9ER

Cate: 144 r}wmh-ﬂ" Tl

YW

Thea White Horss Federation
A Compary Lirmited By Cuarantes
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Statement Of Financial Activities

(Incorporating Income and Expenditure Account)
For the year ended 31 August 2021

Income from:

Canaticons and
capltal grants

Other donaticns
and capatal grants

Oither trading activities
Iresten s
Charitabde actiities
Tesching schools

Tetal income
Expenditure on:

Charnitabla activities
Teaching schools
Total exponditure

HET INCOME [
{EXPENDITURE)

Transfers berween funds
MNET MOVEMEMNT
BEFORE OTHER
GAINS [ [LOSSES)

BActuarial losses on defired
Benefit pEndson schermes

et movement in funds
Total funds brought foreand
ket rraserment in furnds

Total funds carried forward

Unrestricted
fumds

Hote E

151,680

142,008

.&78)

2. Ta6 102

2,784 530

2.784.330

1772

19 -

1,772

27 -
By

566,155

1.7

67925

Restricted
Tunds
20

300,652

59,277,200
10,654

B9 588 466

T2.656.661
T2

TLTI8.873

{3.140.507)

(s28.001)

(3.668.508)

{11.133,000)
(14,801,598)
(27.418,995)
(14,801,598)

[4Z,220.593]

The nates on pages 30 to &6 form part of these financial statements

The WhiTe o Focbrathon
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Restricted
fixod asset
funds

1812889

1812889

3544843
B.942

3553705

0, 7D, BOE)

528,001

1.212,805}

.212.805]
124 288,500
1,212,805)

123,075,695

Total
funds

2255200
152,003
593
TLT90, 708
B,956

Tis 187 45T

78.985.834

81255

79,067,088

(4.879,631)

M135,000)
M&.012.6351)
57435658
(16,012,651)

81,423,027

Total
funds
2020

& Tk 300
235957
36,662
029527
2l TER

T5 558 948

b6 381542
205061

87.184.603

11,625,655}

(1625655

12.665,000]
[14.289655]

M.T25513
114.282.655]

or.435,658

Arwriiad Regeart and Financial Statermants - For the pear ancled 11 Scegust 207




Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2021

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling

dug within one year

Met current assels

Total assets less current liabilities

Craditors: amounts falling
due after maore than one year

Mot assels excluding pension labillty
Befined benefit penshon scherme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the Acadernyy

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset fumds

Restricted Incorme funds

Hestricted funds excluding penslon asset
Pansion resenma

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Hote

15

&

LE)

18

i

=3

19

13

19

T

19

19

184767
5 938,456
7.786,127

(5.488,605)

123.075.695
289,407
123365102

{%2.510,000)

12807708

2.297.522

124, 204,630

{27.603)
12393307
(42,510,000)

81,423,027

80.855.102
567915

81,425,027

TR0

2551022
LR rFALY
S.875.266

[5.955.816)

V24 288 500
[563.995)
125,724 505

{26.855.000)

2020

132905086

2059450

125032536

F41.878)
T34 2590 6508
(268550001

STA35 650

96,869,505
565,151

o7 435 658

Thie financial statements on pages 27 to 66 were approved and authorised for sswe by the Trustees and are sigred on

thair behalf by

L Gibson
Chair of Trustees

Date | Receralots T~

The notes on pages 30 bo 66 form part of these linancial statements

Tha White Horsa Federation

A Cornpaeyy Lerifact By Calideras isp
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2021

Mote
Cash flows from cperating activities
et cash provided byfused in] operating activities 2l
Cash flows from investing activities 23
Cash flows from financing activities 22
Change in cash and cash eguivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20, 25

The notes on pages 31 1o 65 lorm part of these financial staterments

Tha Wit Horse Federaiion
A Covaiaaity Liftilsed By Cudmantig

20

1.941 854

107.003)

1.516.312
FA22 Vhi

4 938 456

2020

(392.062 |

453310

(476 ThE]

116 420

L EIH 564

L e [

Anhial Bepirt and Financial Ratemanta - For Hhe voar ended 81 Sasgust 2001 L]




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021

BCCOUNTING POLICIES

& summary of the principal sccounting policies adopted twhich have been applled consistently, except whene
noted), Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out Dakow,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINARCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial staternents of TWHF, which is a pubbc benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under
the historic cost commntion in accordance with the FRnancial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reportirg by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities proparning their accounts in acconrdance with the Finsnclal Reporting Standard applicabie
In the UK and Republic of reland [FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 10211 the Academies Accownts Direction 2020
ta 2021 issued by ESFA. the Charities Act 2011 and the Carmpanies Act 2006

The White Horse Federation meets the definition of a public benehit entity under FRSIO2

12 GOING CONCERN

The Trustoos astess whoether the use of going concern it appropriate Le whoether there sre any materal
uncertalmties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the akility of TWHF to continue
as a golng concern. The Trustees make this astessmont in rospect of a period of at leatt one year from the date
of authorisation for ssue of the inancial statements and hawve concluded that TWHF has adeqgueate rescurces
and cash to continue in aperational existance for the foresoeable future and there are no material uncertaintes
about TWHFs abllity to continue as a going concern

The on boarding of schoots with significant financial issues and deficits. allied with general growth cn of TWHF
and national funding constraints, has placed & substantial strain on level of free reserves, and this remains a
Ry focus for Trustees I the coming vear. Turnaround of these schools will take time (kypically three plus years)
but a nurmber of initiatives are undersay 1o drive increased reserdse levels and these are at the forefront of SLT
and committee meetings. The impact of Cloucester Academy leaving TWHF has meant that TWHF has had
1o abeark the hatone deficit belonging to that Acaderny, placing further strain on reserses albelt this relleves

ongoing budgetany pressure going forward,

At 31 August 2021 the level of free reserves [being unrestricted funds and Ceneral Annual Grant. sae Mote 19
Sraterment of Funds) was £612 332 and the Trustees consider this & & moderate. albeit posithe. keval Under the
requirermients of TWHF Financial Handbook. TWHF is reguired to maintain positive free resarees at ol timaes and
this is & key balance that (s elosely monitemed I/ undertaking thelr assessment of friee reserses the following
have been considarad:

» Cost cutting and budget improvement measures toimprowe the financial position
Budget forecasts and cashflows which project TWHFE continuing to cperate without any further reduction in
free resenes

= Review of post year end management accounts whilch show Improvernent in the resenes position
Close and regular scrutiny of the budgetary position by managerment and Trustees. including the impact of
the angoing Covid 19 pandermic

« Monthly and continuous dialogue with the regulator, the ESFA. around the current financial position and
outlook, maintaining full transparency
it is alse noted that whilst freo reserves are under strain, cash Aow remaing strong due to the working capital
cycle and capltal funding streams.

Based on the above assessment the Trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial staterments

T Wikila béoras Focesaton
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

13

&

Thee Wit

IHNCOME

Bl incoming resaurces are recognised when TWHF has entitlernent to the funds. the receipt is probable and
the amount can be measured rellably.

Cranis

Crants are included in the staterment of Arancial activities an a recervable basis. The balance of income receved
for specific purpeses but not expended during the perbsd B shown (n the relevant funds an the balance aheet
Where income is mceived in advance of mooting any performance related conditions there is ok ursconditional
entitlernent to the income and its recognition s deferred and included in creditors as defermed income until the
perforrmance related conditions are met. Whene entitlement cccurs before income s recaived. the income is
accrued

Cemeral Annual CGrant is recognised in full in the statement of finamclal activities in the year for which it =
reteivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a llability,

Capital granks are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlernent to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected |n the balance sheet in the restricted fxed asset fund, Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlemant and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Donations
Donathons are recognised en a receivable basis (where there are no perfformance related conditions) where the
recaipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured,

Cther income
Other incame, including the hire of facilities, s recognised in the year it i recehvable and to the exbent TWHF
has provided the goods or senices.

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transhar economic benefit to a third
party, it s probable that a transfer of econcmic benelits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up
of the total of direct costs and shared costs, Including support costs imalved In undertaking sach activity, Direct
corsts attributoble to a single activity ane allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to mone
than one sctivity and support costs which are rot attributable te a single activity are apportioned bebwesn those
activities on a basis congistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of tira
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use

Charitable activities
These arg costs incurred on TWHFs eduecational operations. including support costs and costs refating to the
governance of TWHF apporthoned to charltable activithes.

&l resources expanded are inclusive of Irmecoverable VAT
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Interest on funds held on depesit i Included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by

TWHF, this is normally upoen notification of the interest pald or payable by the Retitution sith wihomm the fumds
are deposited

Horse Federation
; ! Anriusl Report and Financisl Saterments - For the yeos ancled 55 Sugust 2071
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

i

Thae White Horss Fecheration

ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

16

17

LB

TAEATION

TWHF is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph | Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore
it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes

Aecocdirngly, TWHF Is potentlally exempt from taxation in respect of income or capltal gadns received within
categories covered by Part 11. chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2000 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Cains Act 1993, to the extent that such [neome or gains ane applied exclusively to charitable

Prpeosas.
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets costing £1L.000 or maore are capitalised as tangible fieed assets and are carmed at cost. net of depreciation
and oy pravisian for irmpaiment

‘Where tangible fixed assets have been scqguired with the ald of specific grants. either frorm the government
or from the private sector, they are Included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expectad
useful econamic life, Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued
use of the asset, the relabed grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the staterment of Ainancial
activities and carfied forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the staterment of fimancial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
aoguired with unrestricted funds, depreclation on such assets Is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fized aszets other than freehold land and assets wnder construction at
rabes calculated to write off the cost of sach asset on a straight line basis over it expectod useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided an the following bases:

Freehold property straight linge cwer 50 years
Lewrig terrr beasehold land srralght Hree cver 125 yaars
Lang term leasehold property straight fine ower 50 years
Furnitune arnd eguiprment straight line over 5 years
Complter equipment stralght fine ower 3 years
Motor vehicles stralght lime over 5 years

& review for impalement of a fiked asset & camied out If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fized #set may not b recoverabile. Shortfalls between the carying value of fixed peets and
thelr recowerabile amounts ane recognised as impalments. Impalrmment losses are recogmised in the statement of
finamcial activities.

Land and bulldings cccupied under a Church Supplermental Agreement are not recogrised &s assets n the
balamce sheet These land and bulldings are cccupled free of charge under a rolling bwo year lcence from the
landowner, Due 1o the specialsed nature of these land and buildings it (£ not considesed practical to place a
value of the nrotional rent donated by the landowner,

DEBTORS

Trade and other debiors with no stated interest rate and due within ong year a0 recorded at the amount of the
cash o other consideration expected 1o be recenved. Prepaymments are valued at the amount paid

Annual Beoort and Fnencipl Stemants - For (he ear encked 51 Augus 70T
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. BACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

1.9

110

.M

iz

CASH AT BAMK AMND 1M HAND

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly Bquid investrnents with & short maturity of thnee
months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or sirmilar account.

LIABILITIES

Liabdlitles ane recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event it ks
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be requined in settlement. and the amount of the settlerment
can be estimated rellably. LiabHitles are recognised at the amount that TWHF anticipates it will pay to settle
the dabt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or serdces [t rmust provide:

FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TWHF anly holds basic financial instrumments as defined in FRS 102 The financial assets and financial labilites
of TYWHF ard their measurerment bases ane as follows:

Financial asseis - trade and other debtors are basic fimancial instrumenis and are debt instrurnents measured
at amortised cost as detailed in nete 16, Frepayments are not inancial instruments. Amounts due to TWHFS
winolly owrned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment Cash at bank s classified as a basic
financial instrument and s measured at face value.

Cash at bank i classified a3 & basic financial instrurment and = measured at face value

Financhal labilities - trade ereditars, aceruals and other ereditors are inanclal instruments. and ane measuned
at armsartised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18 Taxation and social security are not included in the financial
irstruments diselosure definltion Deferred Income B not deemed to be 8 financial llabiliyy, as the cash
settlemant has already taken place and there is an cbiigation to deliver serdces rather than cash or another
fimancial instrument, Amounts due e TWHES whally ewned subsidiary are beld at face value less anmy
impainment

QPERATING LEASES

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged o the staterment of financial actiities on a straight line basis
ovier the hease term

Tha Wi Le Horss Fedoraion
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES jcontinuod |

113

104

PENSIONG

Retirerment benafits to employess of TWHE are provided by the Teachers’ Pansion Scheme ['TRS"] and the Local
Covernment Pension Scheme ["LGPS™ These are defined benefit schermes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are caleulated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employess’ working lives with TWHF In such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
euwfrent and future pensionabile payrall The cantributions are deterrmined By the Cevernmant Actuary an the
basis of quisdrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TRS is an unfunded multi-employer
schermie with no underying assets bo assign between employers, Condequently. the TPS s treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the pericd to which they
redate.

Thet LGPS s a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are beld separately from those of TWHF IR
separate trustee administered funds. Penslon scheme assets are measured at fair value and llabilities ane
measuned on an actuarial basis uging the prajected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent bo
the current rate of returm on a high guallty corporate bond of eguialent term and currency to the labilfies
The actuarial valuations are abtained at least triennially ard are updated at each balance sheel date, The
ameounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme intreductions
benefit changes settlernents and curtailments. They ame included as part of staff costs as imcurred. het
interest on the net defined benefit liabilingasset is also recogrised in the statement of financial activities
and compaises the interest cost on the defined benefit abligation and Interest income on the scheme assets.
calculated by multiplying the falr value of the scheme assats at the beginning of the period by the rate used
to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual returm on the scheme assets i recognised in othar recognised gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses

ACENCY ARRANCGEMENTS

TWHF acts as an agent in distributing 16 - 19 bursary funds from ESFA Payments recehed frorm EFA and
subsequent disbursements to students ane excluded from the Staterment of Financial Activities as TWHF does
nct have control over the chartable application of the Funds, TWHF can use up to 5% of the allocation towards
its own adrminktration costs and this & recognised (0 the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds recelved.
pald and any balances hald at vear end ane disclosed in note 32

FUND ACCOUMNTING

Linrestricted income funds represent thase resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charttable chjects of TWHF at the discreticn of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are rescurces which are to be applied (o specific capital purposes imposed by the
funders whene the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose

Restrictod genoral funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include granis from the Departrment for Edwecation Growp.

Investment income. galns and [osses are allecated to the approgriate fund,

Annus Fesport end Financial Staterenis - F




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
L& PFIAGREEMENT

The Moredon Prirmary School cccupies buildings which are subject to a PRI agreement. TWHF pays revenue
contributions In respect of facilities management The contract will expine in 2030, TWHF does nat have any
rights ar abligations of ownership in respect of these assets, and therafore they are not Included on TWHF'S
Balance sheet. The revenue payment for service s included in the Staterment of Financial Activities.

N CRITICAL ACCOUMNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDCMENT

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumatances,

Critical accounting estimates and assumpthons

TWHF makes estimates and assumptions concerning the luture. The resulting accounting estimates and
azsurnpiions will, by definition. seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrment to the carrying amounts of assets and |labilities within
the next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Covernment Bension Scheme defined benefit liability deperds on a number
of factors that are debermined on an actuarial basis using a varety of assurmptions The assumptions used in
diEtarriifing th et eost of intarme for pendsions include the discount rata. Any changes in these assumptions.
wihich are disciosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the pension labillity. Furtharmone a ooll
forward approach which prajects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019
has been wsed by the actuany in valuing the persions Hability at 31 Avgust 2021 Any differences betwean the
ﬁgurzs derved from the roll forwvard approach and a full actuanal valuation would impact on the carmying
ameount of the pension llabdlity,

Critical areas of judgment:

TWHF obtains use of fixed assels as a lessee. The classification of such leases as operating or finance lease
reguires TWHF to determing, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arangemants,
whether it retains or acquires the significant risks and revsards of cwnership of these assets and accordingly
whether the lease requires an asset and liability to be recognized in the Balarce Sheat

Arvrind Report and Fimanciol Siatsmsents - Fof the year ended 3T Ausgut




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

E] INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Unrestricted

funds

20

L

Daonations 131,680
Capital Grants

TOTAL 2021 131,680

TOTAL 2030 523,206

L IHCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Education

Mursery

Support to other schools
Leisure facilities

TOTAL 2021

TOTAL 3030

Restricted
funds
201

L

{3.659)

L0 43
00632

Lo R P

Unrestricted
funds

2021

TIETGE

1,558 006
109 609
E8173
2515504

2718678

Restricted
fixed asset

2O

1.612.889
LB1Z, 889

3566170

Restricted
Funds
Flordl

£

B 21849

SE 951

69277 200

&7 576,539

Total
funds

r.a
ZN7380
2245200
4,746,390

Total
funds

2021
59,995,965
1558006
168,560
BB.17T3

790,704

70,295 217

Totad
funds
2020

£

82%
THZE.056

& 746590

Total
funds
2070

£
BASN,TE2
152273
M.B52

158 200

To295 07

TWHF has included restricted COVID 15 Job retention ssheme grants claims aof £1446781 2020 £19.321] arnd £8i1 2020
E40.240) in relation to the Mursery and Letsure activities above

The Wil Horss Facheraisnn
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

5 FUNDING FOR TWHFS EDUCATIOMAL OPERATIONS

Unristricted Restricted Tatal Tatal
funds funds funds Funds
2021 20 2021 200
DFE/ESFA AND OTHER GRANTS E £ E E
Ceneral Annual Crant . 55652048 53652068 BEI2E440
Cither DFE/ESFA grants ' BOO0&0E $00.609 LRLIEF)
Free School Meals e 1278155 1279135 SO ETY
Pupil Bremium . 2850350 289037 2.805.657
Teacher Threshaold 2.678.551 267835 £ 555
High Needs 5800, 58 5.800985 & 64 520
Cithar govarnment revenus granis . SECISD 880,150 1525426
Internal cakering income B16.0ad - E&.092 650 615
Sales to students 41185 . i1.185 27828
Oithar 220439 . 20,439 Lasdy
COVID 18 Excoptional suppaort - Ten 56T
COVID 19 Job retention schamo . 164721 Tad,T21 TS30
COVIDNS Catch up premium ' BanBad B51,880 ¥
TIN6 69218243 69995965 68501762

TOTAL 2020 1,000t B4 &7.597 05 68,500,762

Following the reclassification In TWHF Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from the Department of
Education and ESFA, TWHFY funding lor Universal infant Fred School Meals and Pupil Premium € no longer seported
under the Qther IE Group grants heading. but as separate lnes under thie Other DFEESFA grants heading. The prior yaar
mumibers hive Been reclassified

Tl V'Fii e i et i WL

A Lormpany Limited By CUarsniess
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

-8 INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Lettings

TOTAL 2020

T INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest

TOTAL 2020

Thae Wit Horss o orabior

Unrestricted
funds

162,005

239857

Unrestricted
funds

s

6662

Tatal
funds
202

239,957

b

36.662

Total
funds
20D

239057

Total
funds
FiRFie]

Jo.6450

Annual Boport and Fimancial Statemesn s - For the poar ended 51 Sasgass 202
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Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

B EXPENDNTURE

EDLCATION
Diirect costs

Suppart costs

MURSERY:
Lirect cosks

Support costs

SUPPDRT TGO OTHER SCHOOLS
Direct cosks

Suppart costs

LEISLUEE FACILITIES
Lrireck costs

Suppart costs

TEACHING SCHOOL
TOTAL 2021

TaTAL 2020

The Wihita Horse Federathon

& Doy Linnidedd By Cudanise

Staff Costs
FiLFe|

&9 426,202

10,051,565

1.250.682

&0,.997.062

62,684,587

Premisas
ZOZY

2306,739

fs B39 TE]

68762

215

3a32

TaTE

122659

36303
TAIE 056

6125076

Othar
2021

4 095 316

6,614,067

14,097

]

5849

BaET

10,733,980

18368840

Tatal
2021

55888257

1,545 413

1334.541
3659

ALY AFLY

18,756

B1.254
79,067,088

87,184,603

Total

56615048

28.683306

1575605

4873

BE129

1558

TESTED

38262

203.061

87,178,605

Annual Repart and Fnancial Statements - For the wear ended 5 Aasgust 2077 ]




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

- | AHALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Education

Murseny

Support for other schools

Lelsure facilities

TOTAL 2021

TOTAL 2020

BHALYSIS OF DIRECT COSTS

Pénsion Anance cosks
Staff costs
Depreciation
Educaticnal supplies
Examination fees
Staff development
Cither codts

Supply teschers
Technalogy costs

PFI charges

TOTAL ZDZ1

TOTAL 2020

Education
2021

£

&HS 000
€0 224 BE
2366710
AT 19
Ll B
15 S
ISTETH
201521
128 BT
221880

55.688.257

LEEZO48

Tha Wihitte: Horse Federstion

& Company Limited By Guarantoe

fctivities

undertaken

directly

2020

£

55.8B88.257

1334 541

&5.035

17024

57417957

_'SE,JEEE.E&E

Support

to other

Hursery schools

2021 202

E E

1,250 682 taif BOF

=12 e v L4632
10535
195
1367

1534 541 ERFLL

1575605 BE1z9

R1}

21545415
3659

B4

16736
15ETETY

28.525.000

Leisure
facilities

139,059
T&T6

6a

520

147 ¥ 24

V569,760

Total
funds

on
774335870
1,338,200
L8104
165,880
TH.OA5.83L

86,981,542

Total
funds

2o
485,000
50,658,025
2447 409

2,367,795

135,115
357,561
201,521
zam7
221,880

E7.417.957

5B 652 S

Total
furds
2020

BS 10 354
1580478
a7.68ea
209,002

BE&5E1 542

Total
Furds
020

£
05000
51,680,650
20T IR
2.0460748
L5521
160526
751544
B15.664
B3088
192518

58652 542

Annual Repart and Financial Statsmssnils - For the year ended 31 August 202




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

5 AMALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES [continuod)
AMALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

Support to Lelsure Total Total
Education Mursery other schools facilities funds fumds
2021 2021 2020 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ F 3 £ £
Staff costs 10,091 565 - - 10,091,565 10,308 719
Depreclation 352670 215 ] 1.7382 BS54, 695 TIE822
Cither costy &5, ¥70 . 1) L5268 e BT
Recruitment 414 668 G956 * N5} 15,611 54 858
and suppoet
Maintenance of Tkl 700G - 5263 155197 I RLE oy
premises and
BqLIpirent
Cleaning TESE1E - 5267 TT0.B83 GETLE
Remnt and rates FLURT ] - - - Tisky 579 60,50
Enefgy Costs 1026 558 : - s 1,029,558 250,423
IAgLrance L0047 - 40,947 6325
Secuwrity and 17ans - * 5 NG 165 480
transpart
Catoring 2169 435 2388 : : Z17.813 1860639
Techmology costs ElG.0a5 16 2 Dbty 619,029 TS56.578
Office overhends 40397 82 - LS7 &41,0016 SST0
Legal and 20T050% - : 1,508 2.0720m 2 056089
prafessional
Bank interest 2290 - . TABg 5T 5752
and charges
{Profit) f Loss on . . : - - 309
disposal of fixed assets
CovErnance costs 12 040 142040 LT
Donation cuton o * - - - T.&32166
an acadeny
lpaving TWHF
TOTAL 2021 21545613 3,659 ] 16736 I1.567.877 28529000
TOTAL 2020 FHLEE 506 &4 5Ty 1555 39 262 28529000

Tha Winie o Febarateam

) CoeTipdety Lafriibitd By Gl @nibos
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

10, MET [EXPENINTURELINCOME

Het [expenditurelfincome for the year includes:

20 2CE00
£ £
Crparating lease rentals 206,557 230889
Depreciation of tangible fived assots 331,045 Z,.851873
BFI Charges 239,518 235518

Faws paid to auditars for
- audit 57,000 36,000
- pthor servicos GLas0 6.ITh

n. STAFF
a. STAFF COSTS
Staff costs during the year were as fallows:

on 2020
E £
Wages and salanies EA R T &y 253 0
Social security cosls 5 B80,604 29325159
Persion costs 13,525 504 13778854
B0 647,512 G1LB57.024
Sralf redtructuring Co4ts 147829 m.aom
Supply teacher costd 201,521 E15.664
60,997,062 62684587

b, HON-STATUTORY [ NON-CONTRACTUAL STAFF SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory / non-contrackual severance payments totalling £147 929 (2020,
11,899 The statutery redundancy payments individublly during the year were £13000, E28.613, £43,643, £5656, £7.531,
ERQ000. 15,664 and £4.022

Thes Wihitbe Hors Facdaralson
Annual Report ond Financial Stabermserts - For the year ended 31 Sugeest 2031
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

n STAFF [continued]
¢ STAFF HUMBERS

The average number of persons employed by TWHF durlng the year was s follaws:

o 2020
Mo, Mo
Teachers a2 672
Educational suppeort a5 1153
ddministraticn and ather suppart 1% 193
Managerment o7 24
1,904 - 212

The average headcount expressed as full ime equivalents was:
2021 2020
M, Mo
Teachers LLE:] 588
Educational suppost 43 50%
Aciminstration and other suppost 125 25
Mansgement e w7
1307 14135

Tha White FHorss Federaticn

& Comiparsy Limstec By Cuaraniss
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

mn STAFF (contimued)
d HIGHER PAID 5STAFF

The rumber af employess whose employes benefits (sxcluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60.000 was

2021 2070
M. Mo
in the band E600001 - E70.000 3 25
Im thse band £70,000 - EBODOOD 15 o
In the band EB0U0OT - E90.000 1 2
Ir the band ES0.001 - £100.000 & L]
in the band E900.000 - EN0.000 2 s
In the bard EN10.007 - £120.000 2 1
im the band £1200000 - 130,000 1
tr the band £130.000 - E100000 1
In the band E150,000 - £160.000 1
In the band E160.000 - £170,000 - |
In the bard EIB0000 - £190.000 = 1
in thee barsd E1900000 - 200,000 1
tn thee bard E220.000 - £2530,000 - 1
itn thee bard E260.0010 - £250,000 1

The umber of employees whose employes benefits jexcluding employer pension costs] exceeded £60.000 was:
2 KEY MANACEMENT PERSOMNMNEL
The key management perscnnel of TWHF comprise the Trustees and the senior managament team as Hsted on page 1

The total armount of emplayee benefits (ncluding employer pension contributions and employer national insurance
contributions) recelved by key managoment personnel for thelr serdices o TWHEF was £1200557 (2020 - ELE 057

T Wi bn Hiorss Foues 510
Anmuial Report and Financial Staternents - For tha year ended 31 August 2001 &5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

12 CEMTRAL SERVICES
TWHF has provided the foliowing central senices 1o its acadernies during the year:

= School improvement

Education suppart senices
Hurmam resources
Financial services and compliance farm a conkral struchure
Lang range finenclal planning and analysis
Estates managemant
- Dther services as afising. inciuding rew sehos] integration and strategic growth

TWHE charges for these services on the Fallowing basis

The aim through the matrix structure s e ensure the Princlpals focus an teaching and learning while serdces ane
commissicned from the functional teams To this end the budget process |s key on developing clear cost centre
Strictures at each schoal wiich are then maenitened manthly including pupll premium activities. TWHE operaties a single
furdling agreerment and as such Income is controlled at MAT level and allocated to schools to address approved cost and
rEsource structunes as well a4 support Federation wide Schoal improvernent initiathvas,

The actual amounts charged during the year wene a3 lfollows
13  TRUSTEES REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

Srafl Trustees only recelve rerfmuneratbon In respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of stafi and did not
moeive any payments 0 respect of thoir role 8% Trustoes. Cther Trustees did not receive any payments from TWHF in
respect of thelr robe as Trustoes,

Tine value of stafl Trustees remuneration and pensicn contributions In the year fell into £5000 banding's as follows: W
Capstick Remuneration E280,000 - £205000 (2020 £222,000 - £2250001 Employers pension contributions ENIl {2020,
£50.000 - £450001

Duirimg the year anded 51 August 2020, expenses tatalling £1.218 werne selmbursed or paid directly to 3 Trustees (2020 - ENIL
Vo Trustes)

T4 TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS INSURAMCE

In accosdance with normal commerclal practice, TWHF has purchased insurance to probect Tnustees and officers from
clairms arising from negligent Bots ermors of amissions occurrng whilkst on TWHF business The insurance provides cowes
Wp te £5,000.000 on ary one clalm and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £E2649 (2020 - £2.649) The cost of
this insurance is incleded in the total indurance cost

Anniisl Report and Fancial Stalermenitd - For (e yaar ancled 51 A




Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

15  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST OR VALUATICN
A1 Sepiember 2020
aAdditions

At 5 August 2021

DEPRECIATION
At September 2020
Charge for the year

At 3 August 2021

HET BOOK VALUE
At 3 August 203

A1 3 August 2020

Freehold

proporty
£

38.092.067

38,393,451

3177604

592724

3.7r0338

34623123

54,914,555

Long berm
leasehold

S2.T2TALT
TLE50

82,739,477

6,006.614
1,858,585

T.954.990

BE.631.51%

Furnitumne
and

equipment
£

&,106.956

2. 787.074
528,056

3515130

1.776.456

1,319,882

Compuber
suipment

1. 748,598

BELGZT

2,631,225

1651804

1854, 340

676.885

7. T0u

wehicles

162806
29,435

192,235

HE1GE

29.653&

Total

136,869,088
L.225 066

135,054,154

13.676.002
5,300,004

17,187,046

121907108

122,995,086

Land and bulldings on converslon and acguisition of new Academiles to TWHF have been included in the accounts at an
estimation of their valee at the date of comerion In dotermining thede values the Trustees have refermed to the
valuations of land and buildings provided by the ESFA for other local schools which were performed using the

Depreciated Repdacerment Codt method,

TWHF has been granted use of certain schoal buildings under Supplemental Agreements with varous Diocese The
Trustees constder that undes this agreement the risks and rewards of cnership remain with the Discese. Thorefore the
rebevant land and buildings have nat Been included within the long term leasehald praperty of TWHE

Included in freehold land and Buildirgs B 66789180 (2020 £6, 7831801 of land, which is not depreciated

The Whits Home Fedorebon

A Compasty Lyt By Claarantissg
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

6. DEBTORS

0N 2020
E £
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 36,809 146556
Trade debtors 30,941 Pl
Criher debiors 215,703 256219
Prepayments and accrued income BL48.218 a6
WaAT repayable 2.8457.6M 2551022

17, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YE&R
Pt FAl 2020
E £
ESFA loans 264,298 L P
Trade creditors TOZ. 226 BES Oab
Dither taxation and soclal security S57.855 L0058
Dither creditors 115,816 1055 551
Accrnuals and deferred incoma 2,408,310 1157118
5 LBBE0S 0L EE
FiiF | 2020
i £
Deferred imeome at 1 Septermber 2020 $33802 1425206
Resources deferred durlng the year 1247417 S55902
Armounts released from previous periods (933.901) [LaZ5206)
1247677 35802

At the balance sheet date TWHF was holding ESFA. Local Autharity grants and trip income received in advance for the
2020021 academic year,

Thss Wins Hiorss Faclanathon .
Annual Report and Finencial Statssmants - For the pear ended 51 Ssgust 200 ]
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

6. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN DHE YEAR

i 2020
E i
ESFA loans 271,803 41878

The aggregate amount of Habilites payable or repayable wiholly or im part more than five years after the reperting date 15

20 020
£ £
Bayable or repayable by Instalments 57218 L6382

The loard included abowe ane due to the ESFA EMil (F020: ESFTELT) rolptes to funding proviced for pupll number
ﬂlj_:dﬁ'.i'l'll:-"'lli- rl:'lilﬂjl'-:'l‘l.'lli and E27 603 (2020 E30GZ231]) was received for Condition improement Fund prosects A
repayment scheduia for these loans has bean agreed with the Department for Education and the loans ang intenest free

Thi White Horss Fe-deratisn
A Corrvparny Lieribisd By Clakrantog
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18, STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance at Balance at
1 Soptembar Transfers Calna/ 31 Auguist
2020 Incomie Expenditurs infout ILosses) 2021
UMRESTRICTED FUNDS E £ £ L i i
General funds 566153 2786102 (2784330 567,925
HESTRICTED GEMERAL
FUMNDS
Ceneral Annual Grant [551.465) 53.65L048 [53.,050.421) 15.755) . s, 407
High Mesds - 5800984  (5.800.984) . .
Pupdl premium - 2,690.3M iz.890.3M) . .
1519 Allocation - &8.288 {%8.288] =
LHFSM . 1,278,135 1.279,135)
PE sports grant - 453,020 (344,020} Ns5,000
Teschars pay £ pension grants - 2,678,351 [2678.351) =
COVID 18 cateh up premium = BS1.880 (632 484) 1329.396) 130,000
COVID 19 grants . Tk, T2 [k, 721) . . -
Other DIE [ ESFA grants - 383,301 (393.301) . . .
L& Pupil support grants " Tia5 935 745,933) = = "
Crthvizr L grants - 305,881 (305.881) - = .
Teaching School funding {12,520) 10,634 - 1.896 .
Trips donations . (5.859) - 3,859 -
Devalwed Farrmula Capital . 201,778 {93.083) nas.695)
Pernsion resemne {26.855,000) - (4,522,000) = (Mis5000) (42.510.000)
[27.418.995) HM (72,728,973) (528.081) (MI35000) (&2.220533)

The White Horss Fecderation

A Lompary Limebsa By Cusranten
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1@ STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Balance alt Balance at

1 September Transfers Galns/ 3 August

2020 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2000

E E E E £ £

Fioed assets transforred 115,355,971 - (931,092) - = NEA22ETI

Of COMYeTsion

Flued assets purchased fnorm 9.639.15 - (B, 2BZ) 329,396 - 4684218
Al and other restricted

School Condition Allocation B4l 858 1453 852 {1,518,122) 5 = 1,015, 628

Devobved Formiula Capital 15,961 - {214, 656) 188,695 = s

O Capitad Crant 237558 - f1ea,7351) ] = L8 R

Melksharm Oak IT & FFE Grant 200,000 - {95.865) - . 10,155

LA Capital Crants - 320,087 (520,087) . . .

124,288,500 1,812,889 [5.553.TAS) 528,091 - 123075695

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS 96,869,505 T.&01.355 (T6.28Z.758) . (1M.133.000) B0.855102

TOTAL FUNDS 7435658 T4 187457 (79.067.088) . {11,133.0040) 81425027

The specific purposes for which the funds are 1o be applied are as folkows
RESTRICTED FUMDS

The Censral Annual Crant represents funding recelved from the Education and Skills Funding Agency during the peried
inorded te fund the continulng acthities of the schoals

High Meeds fursding s received from the Local Authority to cater for pupils with learning difficulties and other disabilities
Pupil premium funding represents amounts recelved from the ESFA to cater for disadvantaged pupils
16-19 Allocation funding is received from the ESFA for the provision of sixth form learming.

LIFSM [Unhversal Infant Free School Meals] is received fromn the ESFA for the provision of free school meals to be supplied
to all students up to and including yoear 2

PE sports grant represents funding recetved from the ESFA and must be used to fund improvements to the provision of
PE and spart. for the henefit of primary aged pupils, 5o that they develop healthy lifestyles

Teachers' pay & pension grants i recenved from the ESFA to furd Teachers pay roes and increases o pEnsion
contribution rates

The White Horse Federaton
Anrmial Report and Fnancisl Statemests - For the peas ended §1 Augua 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18, STATEMENT OF FUMDS [continued)

COVID-1E catch up premium s recetved from the ESFA o help pupils catch up on missed education dus to the
disruptions caused by the pandemic

COVID-19 Grants represents exceplional claims made under the Government Coronavinus Job Retention Scheme

DCither DE [ ESFA grants represents other smaller grants recetved including rates resmbuarserment. Year 7 catch up, school
improvermant and TWHE bursary funding

L& Bupil suppart grants represents income received from local authorities for the Tollowing schemes: Primary Behaviouwr
Support Service, Young People Support Service, Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service, Local Authority Pupil
preamium & Pupdl Beferral Unit Senice

Cithar LA grants reprosents smaller grants recetved from local authorities. this Includes a Ministry of Defence grant for the
support of students with parents serdng at local military sites. This alve includes their grants represents smaller grants
recaived from non-gowermment sources

Teaching School funding mpresents funding received from the National College to enable the teaching schoals alliance
1o build the necessary leadership and administrative capacity to undertake its work in leading the alliance

Trip donations represents donations made by parents towards the casts af educational trips during the year

See notes under fixed asset funds section below Tar detalls of Schoal Condition Allecation Devalved Farmula Capital &
OCC Capital. Following updated guidance in the academies account Direction 1920, these funds will be recognised
within the fixed asset funds, any unspent balances where transfermed to the fixed asset fund on 1 September 2019

Penslon resens - This represents the Federmtion's share of the assets and llabilites In the Local Covernment Pensian
Scherme As with most pensian schemes this 5 currently in defcit due to an excess of scheme Hakilities over scheme
assets which was Inherited on conversion to an academy, TWHF Is fellowing the recommendations of the actuary 1o
reduce the deficit by making additional cantributions over a number of years

FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Fised assets trarsferred on converdion repredent the bullding and equipment donated to TWHF on conversion bo an
academy

Fixed assats purchased from CAC and ather restricted funds represent amounts spent on fxed assets frorm CAG oF other
restricted funding receved frarm the ESFA ef ather badies such as the grants listed below. On purchase of a fixed asoet
from the funds below (or CAC) a transfer |5 recognised into the Fized assets purchased from GAG and ather restricted
fund. The balances carried foreard on the funds listed betow on represent unspent cash ar accrued funds at the year and

School Condition Allocation represents funding recebved fram the OFE to fund large capital prajects as TWHF deermns
recquined

Devolved Formuta Capital represents funding received from the ESFA to cover the maintenance and purchase of TWHFs
assels.

QCC Capital and opening grants represents funding received from the tocal authodity for urgent repairs to a school rool
and other cost incurred an comversion 1o an acaderny

51 Luke's SBC grant represents funding received from the local authorsity to cover the major refurbishment of the St Luke's
st

Tha Wi b Hiorse Fodes atian E ",
Annual Report ano Finsrncial SCansmsnts - Fo i pal e
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

19. STATEMEMT OF FUNDS [cantinued)

Melksham Oak 1T & FFE Grant represents funding received from the locsl authority to cover the major refurblsbrment of
the IT swites and equipmeant at the Melksham Qak site

OTHER INFORMATION

Under the funding agreerment with the Secretary of State, TWHF was not subject to a limit on the armount of GAG It could
carry forward at 31 August 2021

Coamparative infarrmatian in respect of the preceding year is a3 follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transters Cainsf 3N August
UNRESTRICTED 2019 Incame  Expenditure infout [Losses] 2020
FUNHDS E E £ £ E [ 4
Ceneral funds TEE 704N 3570575 [3FN.526) - 566153
RESTRICTED
GENERAL FUNDS
General Annual Grant {65.985]) 55123 641 {53.108.911) - - (551 &65]
High MNeeds " 5 054,578 [ BB4 S528] : -
Bupil premium 30687641 [5.067641)
16 18 Allocation . B3OS {3,973}
UIFSh Gasn? (905117
BE sports grant 542 606 (542 696}
Teachers' pay 2785559 (2783 559)
& pension grants
COVID-19 catch-up . F26248 [B2&.248)
premium
COVID-I9 grants . B74% 308 {674 308]
L& Pupll support : 997 700 {997 100]
grants
Diher LA grants : 201547 [#51.347)
Other grants ' 88.102 [98.102)
Teaching School 151 226] 108205 e2.507) - : 12.550]
funding

Thes Wil Horss Faderabion

A Carnpary it By Cugraribes
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18 STATEMENWT OF FUNDS (centinued)

RESTRICTED Balance at

GEMERAL FUNDS 1 September

{cantinued) 018

F 3

Trips danations

School Condition 554 1 26

Allocation

Devolved Forrnala 120,267

Capital

OCC Capital Crant 20180

Pansion roserve Rk Gul O
{24 455.658)

RESTRICTED FINED ASSET FUNDS

Fingd assets 12TSNETE

tramsfermed on
camErsion

Fiwed musets 7900585

paurchased from GAG
and ather restricted

Lchool Condition
Allocation

Devolved Formula
Capital

OCC Capital Grant
51 Luke's SBC Grant

Mitkaham Oak 1T
& FFE Grant

Cither small capital
granis

155412 257

TOTAL RESTRICTED
FUNDS

110,958,609

TOTAL FUNDS M.725313

Transfers

Income  Expenditure infout

£ £ £

EEk B0 {554 940 :

(E@% 126]

M9a. 267

f20080)
L50.000

SB421803 (E7.918577) (B0&573)
N&AS7. T}

1.064% 558] 2807 068

LIBE 160 {12.516] 11,551, 746)

102 547 [175.000) n.sa6)
322500 [BL 065]

53%.612 SILE)

200,000

2135) [Z1.351]

5568170 (15494 500] BO&S57
T SE7 s B 413077
75 5508 S4E (BT84 605)

annuad Beport and Financial Statements - ot

it

Gains/
{Losses)

12.684.000)

{2,684, 000}

(& 564 000])

(2 864 000)

Balance at

31 August
2020

{26.855.000]

27 418.935]

535390

963915

Bt E98

15,561

257555

200000

124 288,500

96,869 505

7 415658

poar anclec 11 Aaagiast 20




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

19 STATEMENT OF FUNDS ([continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

203 2020
Fund balances at 51 August 2021 ware allocated as Follows £ E
John Madejski Academy - {263.655)
Peak Academy - (A5T 46%)
Central B57.332 623526
Total before flued asset funds and pension resemnve B57.332 2158
Restricted fived acset fund 123075695 124,208 500
Pension resenve {42, 510,000) {26,855 000)
TOTAL B1.423,027 7435658

TWHF successfully operate 8 CAS pooling approsch 1o i ncome, and further to that collective approach, operate their
budget setting and accounting structures on a contribution basis - Le. TWHF do not top slice. which has been the
traditional approach to the funding of the central and strateghe functions afl schoolks historically

The approach we take to reserves |s a slightly maore “stepped” approach to the blanket “All reserses are Central reserses”
To that end. if @ schoal bas negative contribution [defined by Expenses allocated greater than Income allocated]. we will
showw that as negative reserves in the annual accounts. Thern as the scheal continues its improvernent journey and stats
to furn a pasitive contribution, then this be reflected in the resenves positean. at which paint the reserves are centralised
once neutrality has been reached

Coven TWHTF has a reputation Tor taking on challenging schools. [t is important both to recognise the scale of the inmpact
these turnarcunds have financially on TWHF and then to mark the progress that has occurned in the Burmaround

In the year. Peak Acadory and Jahn Madejski .ﬁ.-e;.u:dl;rrnjl R extinguished their negative reseroes

Tha Windts Horsn Foderatian

L O Py LTl byt L AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS [continued)
TOTAL COST AMALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Expenditure incumred by each acadesny during the year was b8 follows

Teaching and
educational Cithiar Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs staff costs suppliss  depreciation 202 2021
L £ £ 3 3 E
Bewerhill Prirmarny 1208 425 &1 £2.TRY 1480949 1,495 5938 14772
Acadermy
The Craft Primarny 1124357 T&60.414 3394 142359 1521061 1524509
Acadeny
Devizes School & 606335 B47 065 &E0.012 630,301 634571 STrr02
Crove Primarny School £.0F0. 704 300,266 59157 ZEh 20T Z2,608370 2661002
Forest and Sandricdge 1586367 107,51 22809 185205 1.701,892 1728222
C of E School
Cagle Brook PriFmarny 292388 L& T75H 12445 BEITS &gk ThHE 395,146
Schood
Cloucester Acadamy [124) : . [2EB4T) [2.97) TL43E 736
Ciorse Hill Primary 1L2TE 565 186132 27,590 L7 1ZE6 L7613 LEZ2 o3
Sehoal
Crange Infant School THZ 296 130580 6. TE7 120057 1.068,170 1035 848
Crarnge Junior Schoal 1,015,181 Ta.2a7 Tix 5&1 1477 1324 466 1242 801
Haydan Wick Prirmary BTG5 273 1#3510 23655 443 102, 681 1088886
Schoal
John Madejski 5051778 567308 160, T8 1138460 & 698330 & 735173
Academy
Larkhill Primary TETENZ 5 189 FO5LE 125808 895 455 L1300 406
School
The Manor Tof E 504080 20369 L&088 154079 1,204, 614 127209
Primarny School
Monedion Primary 1535 251 123422 54 H51 IR5613 2054137 A9 670
Schoo
kMountford Manos SOBITL 135,025 12672 158405 1236277 1206328
Brimary School

Thee ‘Wiites Horss Facieration

! Srrassl Feport and Finencial Staisrments - For 2h
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18, STATEMENT OF FUNDS |[continued)

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY [continued)

Teaching and
educational Other Dther costs
support support  Educational excluding Total Total
stalf costs siaif costs supplles depreclation 20 2021
E £ 3 £ £ £
Melksharm Dak BIS0.270 B5G.00% 12650 TOE281 6,680,268 GEEE230
Community School
Nylarnd Spechal Sehoal 1367 88O T 55, 62 055 225350 1.710.856 1630757
Peak Acadeny 1416072 0807 Nos37 2650460 2IM.765 1564208
The Ridgeway School B EXDOTE TEOATZ Zi0 4B5 1.232.685 B.201.415 BF532M

& Sixth Formn College

Hodbourne Chaynay Bra 082 121708 25863 127 656 1087 244 LIZ120%
Prirmary School

Seend C of E Prirmnary by, FTH £7 960 5838 dle28 5652N L4065
School

Shaw © of E Primary 40222 586451 1723 141245 D54, B0 Ds0.286
SCchosol

5t Ceonges Cof E 36,051 22000 25812 57215 &79.178 &590.138
Frimary School

St Mary's Broughton 341837 2265 15588 H3.07H LED.160 16,951
Ciffard C of E Primary

Schaal

St Marys B All Saints 1IGE7. 862 145236 6.2 00 1ED422 N, Sdeds, 50 16000
Church of England

Brimary School

Southbroorm Infants B55.455 BS5 240 18396 B&DED B&31T Bis2 205
Schoal

Southwold Couniy 1026549 148672 FERFL lal-Eor 131466 1257517
Prirnary Schaod

5t Luke's Achdermy 1152 321 A7 L4 1798 173856 1102 1,.837.51
Tregaze Primary School 05963 BEBIS 23,688 a3 a1l 210,097 H5E 13
Wwiest Kidilngton Primany 1220889 154, 968 32.00% 50,755 1498595 15287952

School & Mursery

Whitelands Academy 21,055 10246 120212 IR E2D 970,735

The Whine Horse Federation

& Company Limitesd By Cuararmps
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

19, STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)
TOTAL COST AMALYSIS BY ACADEMY (continued)

Teaching and Crther

educational support support

stalff costs staff cotts

£ £

Zouch Primary 1407210 T8 406
Schoal

Teaching Scheal i S5
Central

Central senvices £&005 157 £ 231560

TWHF EDEED 556 0136516

20. ANALYSIS OF HET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

AMALY SIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
CURRENT YEAR

Tangible fixed assers

Curnent assats

Creditors due within omne year
Creditors due in mone than ane year
Broviskons for llabdlities and charges
TOTAL

AMNALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
PRIOR YEAR

Tangible fixed assnts

Current asels

Creditors due within one year
Creditoss due In mome than one year
Provisions for Habitities and charges

TOTAL

Thas Whirke Horse Foedaraienn

Educational
supplies

2402

107.510

2370813

Unrestricted
funds 2021
E

SETOR5

SET.925

Unresincied
funds 2020
£

585903

Nna7s0]

SEBISE

Other costs
excluding
depreciation
£

YTy

26641

&.131.790

12.288.163

Restricted
funds 2021

GOL2ES
(2488 605)
27605}
(42,510,000
(42 220.595)

Restricted

funds 2020
L

£ 091 949
15.933.816)
(ra2 )
[A6E55.000)

(27518 950)

Total
20

1.757.055

582

12.476,997

TS, T56, 0 b

Restricted
fined asset
funds 2021

£
121807108

1168 887

123075 695
Restricted
fined asset
Funds 2020
£

122993 086

1205 4y

1262588500

Tatal
zon
£

1733457

234,088

12217206

84,342,730

Total funds
E0E

£
121,907,108
T.TREIZT
15.4B8,605)
(271,603)
{42,088,000)
81,423,027
Totad funds
2020

£
122993086
5975266
(5.933.816)
[741.878)
(26855 004)

97415 650

sl Awpor] srnd Finsasisl SUBLErnants - Faf the o eseben 1 Augusl 20320
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Mot expenditure for the year |as peor staterment of financial activities)
ADIUSTMENTS FOR:

Depreciation

Capital grants fromn DME and other sources

Interest recenvabile

Gefined bernefit pension scharme cost bess contributions payable
Defined benefit persion scheme finance cost

(increaseldecrease in debtors

increase/|decreasa) in creditors

Mt lass on academy trarsberred aut of TWHF

NET CASH PROVIDED BY/[USED IN) OGPERATING ACTIVITIES

i, TASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of ESFA loans

HNET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

23 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

interest receiable
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE Sredp and ather sources

HET CASH (USED INI/PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The White Horse — armrmaal Repor and Finendial S1Etements

A o paersy Lirmi b H:. L anneo

2021
L

(%,879,631)

EE1, D
f2.17380)
{593)

i O3%,000
5489.000
(296.549)

1402963

217,380

no7.083)

PO P yepar @l

2020
L

ML625.655]

2 B4 BT
{2219 516)
[36662]

& 093,000
&O5.000
599
1583353
Ta32166

(392.962)

2030
E

{476, TE8)

[476.768)

2020
E

38,663
[2.802.8648)
3219516

455 110

5 At O




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

24 AMALYSIS OF CASH AMND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020
E E
Cash in hand and at bank % 958,456 3422 MG
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & 558 456 B
25, AMALYSIS OF CHAMNGES IN NET DEBT
At 1 September Cash A 31 Augusi
2020 flows 201
£ £
Cash at barnk and in hard
533 Vs 1516312 &, 938 456
Dbt due wathin 1 yaar
Mz.&72) f151.826) [265,298)
Dot clue after 1 waar
{741,878} &0, 275 (271.603)
2.567.794 1834761 440555
26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
203 2020
CONTRACTED FOR BUT HOT PROVIDED IN THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £ E
Acquisition of tangibie fixed assets 1046310 541,975

The White Horse Foderation

B LoDy Linmetsd By Clisiramtse
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

7. PENSION COMMITMENTS

TWHFs employens belong to two principal pension schomas: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wale{TPS) for
acadermic and related staff: and the Lecal Cevernrment Pension Scheme (LCPS] for non-teaching staff, which (s managed
by Wiltshire Pension Fund, Both ame multi ermployer defined benefit schemes

The latest actuarial valuation of the TS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGRS 31 Manch 20018
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year
TEACHERS' PEMNSION SCHEME

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TP5) 5 8 statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers
Pension Scheme Regulations 2004 Membership is sutamatic for full time teachers in seademies. Al teachers have the
opion to opt cut of the TPS following enralment.

The TES is an unfunded scheme towhich both the member and employer makes contributions. 25 a percentage of salary
these contributions ane crecited 1o the Exchequer Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds

provided by Parliament
VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Covernment Actuary. using normal achuanal principles. conducts a formal actuarial revsew of the TES In accordance
width the Pubdic Sendoe Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2004 published by HM Treasury every 4
yaars The aim of tha review is to specify the lovel of futune contributions. Actuarial schema valuations ane dependent an
assumiptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors The latest actuaral valuation of
the TPS was canled ouwt a8 at 31 March 2016, The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019, The ey elerments of the valuation and subseqguen consultathan are;

= Employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay [including a 0.08% administratbom lewy]

= Total scheme labilitkes [pensiens currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for serice to the
effoctive date of £218100 million ard notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional
investrments held at the valuation date) af CI9&100 millicn, giving a noticnal past service deficit of E22.000 million
The SCAPE rate, set by HMT, 5 used to deterrmine the notional irvestrment return, The current SCAPE rate 5 2.4% above
tha rate of CPRI, assumed real rate of return s 2 5% in excoss of prced and 2% in excess of carnings. The rale of real
earrdngs growth s assurmed to be 225 The assumed nominal rate of return incleding sarmings growth is 44556

The next valuation result is due to be Implemanted from 1 April 2025

The employers pension costs pald to TOS in the year amounted to B4 7TH0BE] (2020 - £4825T4)

A copy aof the wvaluation repos and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions  website
[httpsfernnn teatherspendions oo ukfnewslorm playens/2 019004 teacheds pensiond valustion rport aspe).

Uinder the definitions set oul bn FRS 102, the TRS i an unfunded mult emplayer perdion seheme. TWHF has aceounted
for (s contributions o the scheme as If i were a defined contribution scheme. TWHF has set out above the information
available an the scheme

- 2 Annidal Regenrt @il Flasncukl S1atammanla - For 1,
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

27. PEMSION COMMITMENTS [continued)
LOCAL COVERMMENT PENSION SCHEME

The LOPS s & funded defined benefit persion scheme, with the assets held in separate thustesadministered funds The
total contribution made for the year ended 51 August 2021 was £4530.000 (2020 - £4465000) of which employers
contributions totalled £3.46 56 000 [2020 - £3,507.000] and employeed’ contributions totalled £937.000 (2020 - £958 000
The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.8 per cent for employers and 55 - 125 per cent for empioyess.

&5 described in note the LGES obligation relates to the employees of TWHF. who were the employees transfermed as pant
of the camversian Ffrom the maintained schoal and new employees who were eligibbe to.and did. join tho Schemse in the
year. The okligation in respect of employees who transferred on comeision represents their cumulative serice at both
the predecessor school and TWHF at the balance sheet date,

Barlmrment has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantes that in the event of TWHF
closurg, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme fabllites would be met by the Deparment for Education The
guarantee carme into force on 18 July 2013

PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 2021 2020

k] )
Rate of increase |n salaries b . 25
Rate of increase for penslons in payments .8 22
Driscount rate for scheme labilives 1.7 (i)
Inflation assumpticn {CP1) 8 2

The current morality assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future imprevements in martality rates The assurmed
life cxpectations on etirement age 85 are:

20 H020
RETIRING TODAY Years Years
Males na 27
Fernales 2 260
RETIRING IN 20 YEARS
Males 229 225
Females 261 254

T Wil ie Horss Fockermtson
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

27. PENSION COMMITMENTS [continued )
SHARE OF SCHEME ASSETS

TWHFs share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Corporate bonds

Proparty

Cash and other llquid assets

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS

The actual return on scheme assets was ESTE 000 (2020 - E1L020.000)

The amaunts recognised in the Staterment of fimancial actnities ane as fodlows

Current service cost
interest incoame
Intenzst cost

TOTAL AMOUNT RECCGHISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL ACTIVITIES

Chamges In the present value of the defined benefit ebligations were as follows

AT1SEPTEMBER

Transferred out on existing academies leaving TWHF
Interest cost

Employes contributhons

Aotuatial losses | [gains)

Benelits pald

Current service cost

AT 31 AUCUST

Tha Wihite Horss Federation

i, Cormpalryy Linmtond By Choad ant g

irmrvaal Report and Financial Statesments

29.578. 700
1742710
5.E809.57T0

547.020

202
i

(7.467,000)
775,000
[1.264.000)

(7.956,000)

1,264,000
937,000
16,441,000
ooz.o00)
7.467,000

895,879,000

2020

269000
1559463 000
B221.000
34,000

S5S1T.000

2020
£

17600000
TIS000
(11640000

(B.005. 000}

200
L

B7.043,000
{9.219.000|
1 hdede THC
958,000
S4B D00
{252,004
B0

TOTTE000

Fon thsie yoiir encled 51 Sasguse 2037 3




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Z7.  PENSION COMMITMENTS [combimued]

Changes in the fair value of TWHFs share of scheme assels were as follows

0 2030

£ E

AT1SERTEMBER 43 917,000 42402 000
Transferred cut on existing academiles leaving TWHF - (& 2T1.000)
Interest fncome TIR.000 739,000
Actuarial gaing 5308000 B34, 000
Employer contributions 3434000 I507.000
Employes contributions 857,000 58,000
Benefits paid 1.002,000) [252.000]
AT 31 AUCUST SR EE7.000 43917000

i8. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2021 TWHF had commitments to make future minimum lease payrments under non-cancellable aperating
leases as fodlows

20 2030

3 E

Mot later than 1 year 390,836 451475
Later than 1 year and not lates than 5 years 1187 827 1528220
Later than 5 yoars BSE 955 115,818
2435618 2896513

Moredeon Primary Schoel occuples baildings that are subject to a PFl agreement. The amount included in operating lease
commitments above Is the projected revenue payrment for future years. This sgreement will expire in 2030 and gach
annual payrment is subject to inflationary increases

9. MEMBERS LIABILITY
Each meomiber of the chardtable campany undertales to contribute to the assots of the company in the event of it belng

wound up while he/she is a membaer. or within one vear after hefshe ceases to be a member, such amount as rray be
requlined. nat exceeding 010 far the debts and lisblties contracted Befare hel'she ceases to bo a membar

armiill Fhport Bnd Finenclal Statements - For the year enoed ) dogust 202
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dwrirsg the year. Prirne Theatre invosced TWHF a net armount of E21.925 (2020 £6 884] with a balance of 88275 (2020 £198}
putstanding at year end. Or N Capatick. CEQ arsd Trustes, s & director af Priree Theatre. The transactions ware at anms
Iyt

Crheadreg to the nature af TWHF and the compaosition of the Board of Trustees belng drawn from local public and private
sector arganisations. transactions may take place with organisations (n which thie brustees Rave an nterest All transac-
tiors Invaldng such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirernents of the Academies Financial Hand-
ook ini:lud-un.g notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 &pal 2009 and obtaining their approval where
requiired, and with TWHFS financial regulations and normal procurernent procedures relating to connected and related
party transactions

3. AGEMCY ARRANGEMENTS

TWHF distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period ended 31 August 2021
TWHF recelewed £48 288 and disbursed £48 288 from the fund, An amount af £Mil is iIncluded in other creditors relating to
undisiribwted funds that i repayabie 1o ESFA,

32 CONTROLLIMNG PARTY

The comparny is under the jaint cantrod of the Members. There i no ultimate cortrolling party

doryrmpsl Fepord @nsd Hiancisl Shybermenis - &




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

35 TEACHIMNG SCHOOL TRADING ACCOUNT

Income
2021 2021 2020 2020
DIRECT INCOME i £ £ £
E5FA and other government grants 10634 188340
DTHER INCOME
School to school support 678} 52387
TOTAL INCOME B.956 260,722
Expanditura
DIRECT EXPENDITURE
VWageos and salaries s 23145
Educational supplies 13275 o025
Technology costs - 150
Supply teachers - 3
Sralf developrnent - 295
TOTAL DIRECT EXPENDITURE = 1?1?5 i 210
OTHER EXPENDITURE
Wages and salares 64 951 55 5a&1
Depresciation B.942 7663
Prafessional servicos 14,086 21813
Chtbuier costs - 1269
TOTAL OTHER EXPENDITURE 67,979 S.131
TOTAL EXPENDHTURE 81,254 204350
Deficltlsurplus fram all sources (T2.298) 36372
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020 56,372
TEACHING SCHOOL BALANCES AT 31 AUCUST 2021 (35.92E) I6ETE

Tha White Horss Federation
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